Chartered Accountants

DeIOitte ASV N Ramana Tower

52, Venkatnarayana Road

Haskins & Sells e s00.017
Tamil Nadu, India

Tel: +91 44 6688 5000
Fax; +91 44 6688 5050

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of Dr. Agarwal’s Eye Hospital Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Dr. Agarwal’s Eye Hospital
Limited {(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, and
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies
and cother explanatory information.

In our opinicn and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, (*Ind AS")
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2024, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing ("SAs") specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial
statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professicnal judgment, were of most
significance in cur audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report,
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sr. No.

Key Audit Matter

Auditor’s Responsé

1

Allowance for credit loss on
overdue trade receivables

The Company has total cutstanding
trade receivable of Rs. 17.63 Crores
(corresponding allowance for
expected credit loss amounts to
Rs. 4.70 Crores) as at 31 March
2024.

The appropriate valuation of trade
receivables is dependent on a
number of factors such as age,
credit worthiness, intent and ability
of counter parties to make
payment.

The carrying value is adjusted with
the allowance for credit loss amount
calculated based on the above-
mentioned factors, wherein
estimates and judgements are
involved considering the delay and
default risk and hence it has been
considered as a key audit matter.

Refer to the accounting policies
para 3.27.1 and Note 14 of the
Financial Statements.

Our

principal

audit  procedures

performed include:

1.

Assessed the appropriateness
of the Company's accounting
policy by comparing the same
with the applicable accounting
standards.

Evaluated the design and
implementation and tested the

operating effectiveness  of
controls over the {1}
development of the

methodology for the allowance
for credit losses, including
consideration of the current
and estimated future economic
conditions, (2) completeness
and accuracy of information
used in the estimation of
probability of default and
delay, and (3) computation of
the allowance for credit losses.

Assessed the profile of trade
receivables and the economic
environment  applicable to
these trade receivables by
testing the input data such as
credit reports and other credit
related information used by the
Management for a sample of
such customers.

Evaluated the simplified
approach applied by the
Company to identify lifetime
expected credit losses. In
doing so, tested the historical
provision rates and an

evaluation was carried out for
the need for it to be adjusted
to reflect relevant, reasonable
and supportable information
about expected recoveries in
the future. :
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Recomputed expected
credit loss allowance
considering the above

determined input data and
compared the amounts so
recompufed with the amounts
recorded by the Management
to determine if there were any
material difference individually
or in the aggregate.

6. Evaluated the adequacy of the
disclosures in the financial
statements by mapping the
same against the requirements
of the applicable accounting
standards.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

s« The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the Board of Director's Report (but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon} which we obtained prior to the
date of this auditor's report, and the Annual Repert which is expected to be made
available to us after that date.

+ Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

« In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

« If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained
prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

+ When we read the Annual Report, if we conciude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance
as required under SA 720 ‘The Auditor’s responsibilities Relating to Other Information”.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors is responsible
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3){i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our apinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going cancern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify cur opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal financial controls that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the infermation and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for not
complying with the requirement of audit trail as stated in (i}{vi). The Company's
daily backup of it's accounting records are maintained in servers physically located
outside India (Refer Note 52 to the financial statements}.
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c)

d)

e)

)

h)

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in
Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
31 March 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters
connected therewith, are as stated in paragraph (b) above.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “"Annexure A”. Qur report expresses an
unmaodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197{16) of the Act, as amended,

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year
is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as

amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the

explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 41 to the financial
statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred,
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and

belief, other than as disclosed in the Note 53 (xi} to the financial
statements no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity({ies),
including foreign entities ("Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, other than as disclosed in the Note 53 {xii) to the financial
statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reascnable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to
our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

The final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid by the
Company during the year is in accordance with section 123 of the Act, as
applicable,

The interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the vear
and until the date of this report is in accordance with section 123 of the
Companies Act 2013,

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has
used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account for the year
ended 31 March 2024, which have the feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the softwares, except that:

s in respect of a software operated by third party service provider for
maintaining payroll records, in the absence of an independent
auditor's system and organization controls report covering the audit
trail requirement at the database level, we are unable to comment
whether the audit trail at the database level was enabled and
operated throughout the year or whether there was any instance of
the audit trail feature been tampered with.

Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, in respect of accounting
softwares for which the audit trail feature was enabled and operating.

As provise to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is
applicable from 1 April 2023, reporting under Rule 11 {g) of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the
statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the year
ended 31 March 2024.




Deloitte
Haskins & Sells

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143{11) of the Act, we give in
“Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
{Firm's Registration No.0080725S)

R~ @oﬁ&? ;}@—/‘L "

R. Prasanna Venkatesh
Partner

Membership No. 214045
(UDIN: 24214045BKEKKC8196)

Place: Chennai
Date: 25 April 2024
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ANNEXURE "A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements
under Clause (i)} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
Dr. Agarwal’s Eye Hospita!l Limited (“*the Company”) as at 31 March 2024 in conjunction
with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’'s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements based on criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting {(the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in afl material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internat financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financiat statements is a process
designed to provide reasonabie assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with
reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reascnable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control with reference to financial statements may become inadeguate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the criteria
for internal financial control with reference to financial statements established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’'s Registration No.008072S)

Q- 2 et
\N/\M — "

R. Prasanna Venkatesh
Partner

Membership No. 214045
{UDIN: 24214045BKEKKC8196)

Place: Chennai
Date: 25 April 2024
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Repart on Other Legal and Regulatery Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

{i) In respect of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:
{a) (i) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including

guantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, Capital work-
in-progress and relevant details of right-of-use assets except in the case of
Property, Plant and Equipment, where the Company is in the process of updating
the records for quantitative details and situation of certain assets.

(ii} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

{b) The Property, Plant and Equipment, capital work-in-progress, and right-of-use

assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance
with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides for physical
verification at reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanation
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties, which are reported under

Property, Plant and Equipment and, hence, reporting under clause(i)(c} of the
CARO 2020 is not applicable.

In respect of immovable properties of land and building that have been taken on
lease and disclosed as right of use assets as at the Balance sheet date, the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including

right of use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(&) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the

Company as at 31 March 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibitien) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.

(i) (a) As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by

the Management at reasonable intervals. In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the
agaregate for each class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification
of inventories when compared with books of account.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate,
at any point of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets. Hence, reporting on the quarterly returns or
statements filed by the Company with such banks or financial institutions is not
applicable.
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(iilThe Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or
security, and granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties
during the year, and, hence, reporting under clause (iii) of the Order is not
applicable.

{iv} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees/
security to any other entity during the year and, hence, reporting under clause (IV)
of the CARQO 2020 is not applicable.

{v) According to the information and explanaticns given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits during the
year. Hence, reporting under clause 3{v) of the Order is not applicable.

{vi} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has maintained the cost recerds which has been specified by the Central
Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadiy
reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies
{Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended and prescribed by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and
are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made
and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost
records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory

dues:

(a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, duty of Custom, cess and other material
statutory dues applicable to the Company have generally been regularly deposited
by it with the appropriate authoerities though there has been a delay in respect of
remittance of Professional tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance and
Labour Welfare Fund dues.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax,
Provident Fund, Income-tax, duty of Custom, cess and other material statutory
dues in arrears as at 31 March 2024 for a pericd of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

(b) There are no statutory dues referred in sub-clause (a) above which have not been
deposited on account of disputes as on 31 March 2024.

{(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
there were no transactions relating to previcusly unrecorded income that were
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.

{ix)(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Campany has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or barrowings or in the
payment of interest therecon to any lender during the year.

(b) In our opinion and accerding to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.
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{(x)

{c) To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by
the Company were, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for
which the loans were obtained, other than temporary deployment pending
application.

{d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year
for long-term purposes by the Company.

{e) The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during
the year and, hence, reporting under clause (ix)(e) and clause {ix)(f) of the Order
is not applicable.

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and, hence, reporting under
clause (x){(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares o convertible debentures (fully or partly or opticnally) during the year and,
hence, reporting under clause (x)(h) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{xi) (&) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations

given to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by
its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b} To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act
has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up to the
date of this report.

(¢) As represented by Management, there were no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year and up to the date of this report.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and, hence, reporting under clause (xii} of

the Order is not applicable.

(xiii} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013,
where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of
related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,

the Company has an adeguate internal audit system commensurate with the size
and the nature of its business.

(b} We have considered the internal audit reports issued to the Company during
the year and covering the period up to 31 March 2024, in determining the nature,
timings and extent of our audit procedures.
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(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,

during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
its directors or directors of its holding, subsidiary or associate company or persons
connected with them and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act,
2013 are not applicable.

(xvi) (&) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a}, (b) and
{c) of the Order is not applicable.

(b} In our cpinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and, accordingly,
reporting under clause (xvi){d) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our
audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

{xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during

the year.

{xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of

financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company. We further state that our reperting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) and there are no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring
a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act or special
account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the
said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause {xx} of the Crder is not applicable for
the year.




Deloitte
Haskins & Sells

{(xxi) The Company does not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during
the year and hence, is not required to prepare consolidated financial statements.
Accordingly, clause (xxi) of the Order is not applicable.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.0080725)

P-fros 7 Tl

R. Prasanna Venkatesh
Partner

Membership No. 214045
(UDIN: 24214045BKEKKC8196)

Place: Chennai
Date: 25 April 2024




Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited

CIN : L85110TN1994PLC027366
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024

(Amount in INR Crores)

Particulars Notes As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
ASSETS )
Non-Current Assets . - o
' Propery, plant and equipment 5 120.87 85.31
Right of use asseis ' 6 193.96 - 173.92
Capital work-in-progress - 7 97 .44 - B221
Goodwill 8 0.18 0.18
‘Other intangible assets 8 0.62 0.96
Financial assets B o
Other financial assets o . 9 850 7.11
 Non current tax assets (net} 10 e 0.41
 Deferred tax assets (net) 11 10.03 9.71
Other non-current assets 12 433 o 359
Total non-current assets 435.93 34340
Current Assets
~ Inventories - 13 9.75 6.00
Financial assets o o
Trade receivables 14 12.93 1011
Cash and cash equivalents o . 15 32.88 o 27.38
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 16 0.86 0.72
N Other financial assets 17 1.96 2.08
Other current assets o o 18 1.45 0.25
Total current assets . 59.83 46.54
TOTAL ASSETS 495.76 389,94
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES -
Equity iR
Eqﬂity share capital KT 4.70 470
Other equity - 20 152.45 10864
Total equity 157.15 113.34
Liabilities a
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities R
R Eofrowfngs 21 44.46 3577
Lease liabiltes ] | 22 203.59 177.97
Other financial liabilities \ 23 2.36 1.58
Provisions 24 7.43 6.20
Total non-current liabilities . 1 257.84 221,52




Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited

CIN : LB5110TN1984PI.C0O27366
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024

{Amount in INR Crores)

Particulars Notes As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Current liabilities
Financial liabilties - .
Borrowings - B 25 |Fe 6.84 8.06
Lease liabilities 26 13.13 10.67
Trade payables 27 -
- Tolal outstanding dues of micre enterprises and small B WS R s ey (T 2.28
enterprises
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 27.22 2441
enterprises and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities 28 20.28 452
Other current liabilities 29 519 o 410
Current tax liabilities (net) . 10 220 =
Provisions | 30 1.29 104
Total current liabilities 1 8077 55.08
~ Total liabilites ' 338.61 276.60
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES - 495,76 389.94

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number: 0080723

p.Pros e ™E )
Vi ik & -
R. Prasanna Venkatesh

Partner
Membership No.: 214045

Place : Chennai
Date : 25th April 2024

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

o

Dr. Amar Agarwal
Chairman & Managing Director
00435684

Place : Chennai
Date : 25th April 2024

Bl ey

Mr.B. Udhay Shankar
Chief Financial Officer

Piace : Chennai
Date : 25th April 2024

o=

Dr. Athiya Agarwal
Wholetime Director
01365658

Place : Chennai
Date : 25th April 2024

Ms. Meenakshi Jayaraman
Cormpany Secretary

Place : Chennai
Date : 25th April 2024



Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited

CIN : LE5110TN1994PLCO27366

Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31st March 2024

{Amount in INR Crores)

Particulars Notes For the year ended 31st  For the year ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
INCOME '
Revenue from operations N [ 31 319.30 268.10
~ Other income 32 497 1.55
Total income 324.27 269.65
EXPENSES
~ Purchases of stogk-in-trade 33 35.95 30.68
~ Changes in inventcries of finished goods stock-in-frade and work-in-prograss 34 (2.25) (0.87)
Cansumption of Surgical lens |nc|ud|ng other consumables 36.85 31.15
Consultancy charges for Doctors 4837 38.55
Employee benefits expense 35 63.78 53.26
Finance costs 36 747 R 6.87
Depreciation and amortisation expenses N 37 26.61 2018
Other expenses - 38 45 54 40.43
Total Expenses B 262,02 220.25
Profit before Tax 62.25 49.40
Tax Expense
~ Current tax N ] 104 16.22 12.33
Deferred tax (Net) o 101 (0,33) 0.15
Total tax expenses 15.89 12.48
Profit for the year 46.36 36.92
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME! (LOSS)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
~ Remeasurements of the defined benefit liakilities / {asset) 0.05 {0.48)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (0.01) 0.13
Total other comprehensive income 0.04 (0.35)
Total comprehensive income for the period 46.40 36.57
Earnings per equity share (Face value of INR 10 /- eacﬁ) B - -
Basic (in INR } [ 98.64 78.55
Diluted (in INR ) | 48 s 98.64 7855

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number: 0080725

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

? @nﬂwm{}pﬂ /{/’ﬂe’d

Dr. Amar Agarwal
Chairman & Managing Director

R. Prasanna Venkatesh
Partner
Membership No.: 214045

Place : Chennat
Date : 25th April 2024

00435684

Placa : Chennai
Date : 25th April 2024

T Lpe—fav

Mr.B. Udhay Shankar
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Chennai
Date : 25th April 2024

Dr. Athiya Agarwal
Whaletime Directar
01365659

Place : Chennai
Date : 25th Aprif 2024

4 [{beolisld

Ms. Meenakshi Jayaraman
Company Secretary

Place - Chennai
Date : 25th April 2024



Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited

CIN © L85110TN1994PLCO27366
Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended 31st March 2024

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL Amount in INR Crores)
Particulars Equity Share Capital
Balance as at 1st April 2022 ] - 470
Changes in equity share capital during the peried o - -
Balance as at 31st March 2023 o 7 4.70 |
|Changes in equity share capital during the period =
Balance as at 31st March 2024 B : 4.70
B. OTHER EQUITY (Amount in INR Crores)
Reserves and Surpius [
E
Particulars |
Securities Premium | General Reserve | Retained Earnings | Totai(A)
[
Balance as at 1st April 2022 - 551 0.83 6714 7348
Profit for the period ) - - 3692 36.92
Payment of Dividend on equity shares {1.41} B {1.41)
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (net of taxes)* {0.35) (0.35),
Balance as at 31st March 2023 5.51 0.83 102.30 108.64
Profit for the period - - ) 46.36 4@31
Payment of Dividend on equity shares ) (2.59) (2.59)
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (net of taxes)* 0.04 0.04
Balance as at 31st March 2024 5.51 0.83 146.11 152.45

*Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (net of taxes) are recogonised as a part of retained earnings.

As per our report of even date attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Selis For and on hehalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountanis
Firm's Registration Number. 0080728

P; Ofn;ﬂ}t:\t"’f__l‘. T’J W

R. Prasanna Venkatesh Dr. Amar Agarwal Dr. Athiya Agarwai
Partner Chairman & Managing Wholetime Director
Diractor
Membership No.: 214045 00435684 01365659
Place : Chennai Place : Chennai

Date : 25th April 2024 Date : 25th April 2024

TG g (el

Mr.B. Udhay Shankar Ms. Meenakshi Jayaraman
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Chennat Place : Chennai Place : Chennai

Date : 25th April 2024 Date : 25th April 2024 Date : 25th April 2024




Dr. Agarwal’'s Eye Hospital Limited

CIN : LB5110TN1994PLC027366
Cash Flow Statement for the period ended 31st March 2024

(Amount in INR Crores)

Particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
A: CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES - ’
" Profit before tax as per statement of profit and loss 62.25  49.40
~ Adjusted for: -
(Profity loss on sale/ discard of property, plant and equipment and other 0.23 0.03)
intangible assets (net) - R ] S —_—— =
Bad debts and net allowance for expected credit losses/ (reversal of) doubtful 0.86 0.80
receivables
Interest on deferred consideration 0.08 0.14
Depreciation and amortisation expense 26.61 20.18
Net foreign exchange (gain)/ loss - 0.11
Liabilities/ provisions no longer required written back (1.72) (0.24)
Interest income (1.95) (0.78)
Finance costs 7.04 6.62
Operating profit before worﬁﬁj_ce;pital change_s— 93.40 76.20
~ Adjustments for {increase)/decrease in operating assets:
~ Inventories - (375) (0.27)
* Trade receivables - o (371) (1.98)
Other financial assets - Non current (0.70;7 - 0.51
Other financial assets - Current o 0.46 .79
Other current assets - (1.20) 2.82
Adjustments for increasef{decrease) in operéting liahilities:
Trade payables ) 6.86 1.03
Other financial fiabilities - Non current 1.26 0.03
Other financial liabilities - Current ) o 8.15 o -
Provisions .62 1.40
Other current liabilities 1.09 0.61
Cash generated from operations 103.38 81.14
Income Taxes paid (net of refunds) (13.61) (11.52)
~ Net cash generated from operating activities {A) 89.77 69.62
B: CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES .
Capital expenditure towards tangible assets (including capital advances, net of (71.31) (70.34)
~ capital creditors) - o
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 1.00 0.07
Capital expenditure towards intangible assets (0.01) -
Deferred consideration paid (0.50) (0.50)
Increase in Bank halances not considered as Cash and cash equivatents (0.14) (0.04)
Interest Received on Fixed Deposit 0.82 0.20
Net cash {(used in) investing activities (B) (70.04) (70.61)




Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited

CIN : L8B110TN1994PLCO27366
Cash Flow Statement for the period ended 31st March 2024

(Amount in INR Crores)

Particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
C: CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES -
Proceeds from Borrowings 15.00 20,94
Repayment of Borrowings (7.53) © (9.05)
Dividend paid (including tax thereon) (2.58) . (1.41)
Finance costs paid on borrowings - - {0.23) (1.78)
Payment of lease liabilities o - (18.89) ) (8.44)
Net cash generated from/ {used i_nﬁnancing activities (C) (14.23) 0.26
Net Increase / (5ecrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) = (D) 5.50 {0.73)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period (E) 27.38 2811
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period (D) + (E) 32.88 27.38

Ag per our report of even date attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number: 0080728

PRosorners |

R. Prasanna Venkatesh
Partner

Membership No.: 214045

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Jn-

Dr. Amar Agarwal
Chairman & Managing
Director

00435684

Place : Chennai
Date : 25th April 2024

lWM

Piace : Chennai
Date : 25th April 2024

Mr.B. Udhay Shankar
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Chennai
Date : 25th April 2024

Dr. Athiya Agarwal
Wholetime Director

01365659

Place : Chennai
Date : 25th April 2024

A \Q@W L
Ms. Meenakshi Jayaraman
Company Secretary

Place ; Chennai
Date : 25th April 2024



Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

1 Corporate Information
Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited {'the Company’) was incorporated on 22 April 19984 and is primarily engaged in running, owning and managing
eye care hospitals, opticals, pharmacies, etc. and related services. As at 31st March 2024, the Company is operating in 50 locations in India.

2 Application of New and Revised Ind AS
All the Indian Accounting Standards issued and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended) till the financial statements are autherised have been considered in preparing these financial statements. There is no
other Indian Accounting Standard that has been issued as of that date but was not mandatorily effective.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs {(MCA} notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 31st March 2024, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by
issuing the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendments Rules, 2023, applicable from April 1, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements
This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant acceunting policies. The effective
date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 01 April 2023.

The company has adopted the amendments to Ind AS 1 for the first time in the current year. The amendments change the requirements in Ind AS 1
with regard to disclosure of accounting policies. The amendments replace all instances of the term 'significant accounting policies' with 'material
accounting policy infermation’. Accounting policy information is material if, when considered together with other information included in an entity's
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on
the basis of those financial statements

The supporting paragraphs in Ind AS 1 are also amended to clarify that accounting policy information that relates to immaterial transactions, other
events or conditions is immaterial and need not be disclosed. Accounting policy information may be material because of the nature of the related
transactions, other evenis or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy information refating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is itself material.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The company has adopted the amendments to Ind AS 8 for the first time in the current year. The amendments replace the definition of a change in
accounting estimates with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are "monetary amounts in financial
statermentis that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. The definition of a change in accounting estimates was deleted.

3 Material accounting policies

3.1 Statement of Compliance
The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.

The financial statements were authorised for the issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 25th April 2024.

3.2 Basis of Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which are measured at
fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation techniqus.
In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if markat
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree toc which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
* Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
« Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

33 Use of Estimates
The preparaticn of the financial statements requires the Management to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) as of the date of the financial statements and the reported income and
expenses during the reporting period. Examples of such estimates include provision for doubtful debts/advances, provision for empioyee
berefits, useful lives of fixed assets, lease term, provision for contingencies etc. Management believes that the estimates used in the
preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results may vary from these estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumptlons are rewewed on an ongoing basis. Rewsmns to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the year in which the




Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

Cash and Cash Equivalents (for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement)

Cash comprises cash on hand, cheques and demand drafts on hand, balances with banks in current accounts / demand deposits. Cash
equivalents are short-term balances {with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank balances other
than the balance included in cash and cash equivalents represents balance on account of margin money deposit with banks and balances in
earmarked Escrow accounis.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information,

Functional and Presentation Currency

ltems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Company operates (i.e. the “functional currency”). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), the nationat currency
of India, which is the functional currency of the Company. All the financial information have been presented in crores of Indian Rupees
except for share data and as otherwise stated.

Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realization in cash
or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and
liabilities as current and non-current.

Business Combinations

Business combinations in which control is acquired are accounted for using the acquisition method, other than those between entities
subject to common control. The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of the assets transferred by the Company, liabilities incurred by the Company te the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Company in exchange of control of the acquiree. Acqguisition related costs are generally
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. Contingent consideration, if any, is measured at its acquisition date fair value.
Subsequent changes to the fair values are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless such adjustments gqualify as measurement
period adjustments in which such it is adjusted to the cost of acquisition.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the
Company reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during
the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognized, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances
that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized as of that date. The measurement period
is the period from the date of acquisition to the date the Company obtains complete information about facts and circumstances that existed
as of the acquisition date. The measurement period is subject to a maximum of one year subsequent to the acquisition date.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that

- Deferred tax assets or liabilities related to employee benefits arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12
Income faxes and Ind AS 19 Employee benefits respectively.

- liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment arrangements of the
company entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 at the
acquisition date (see below) and

- assets (or disposal groups} that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 are measured in accordance with that
Standard.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognized separately from goodwill are initially recognized at their fair value at
the acquisition date. Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.
Contracts acquired in a business combination are assessed for whether favorabie or unfavorable relative to current market terms and if such
favorable or unfavorable terms exist, the Company adjusts the effects of such terms in the measurement of the related assets or liabilities.

Man-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a properticnate share of the entity's net assets in
the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value or at the nen-controlling interests’ propertionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Contingent liahilities acquired in a business combination are initially measured at fair value
at the date of acquisition.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Company's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to its
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree
prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where
such ftreatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.




Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

3.9

3.10

Property, Plant & Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment less (if any). The cost of
Property, Plant and Equipment comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates and includes taxes, duties, freight,
incidental expenses refated to the acquisition and installation of the assets concerned and is net Goods and Service Tax (GST), wherever
the credit is availed. Borrowing costs paid during the pericd of construction in respect of borrowead funds pertaining to construction /
acquisition of qualifying property, plant and equipment is adjusted to the carrying cost of the underlying property, plant and eguipment.

Any part or components of property, plant and equipment which are separately identifiable and expected to have a useful life which is
different from that of the main assets are capitalized separately, based on the technical assessment of the Management.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date are disclosed as “Capital
Advances” under Other Non Current Assets and cost of Property, Plant and Equipment not ready to use before such date are disclosed
under “Capital Work- in- Progress”.

Depreciation

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset less its estimated residual value.

Depreciation on tangible property, plant and equipment has been provided on the straight line method (change in method of depreciation
effactive from 1st April 2022) as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 except in cases of certain assets
where the management's estimate of the useful life based on technical assessment is less than the life prescribed in Schedule Il in which
case depreciation is provided on the useful life as assessed by the management.

Category Useful life

Leasehold Improvements Qver lease term

|Medical Equipments ' ~ [1-15years

Office Equipments ~ |1-5 years

Vehicles [8-10 years o
Computers 1-6 years

Electrical Fittings - 1-10 years

Furniture and Fixtures - 1-10 years

ILab Equipments B |10 years

Depreciation is accelerated on property, plant and equipment, based on their condition, usability etc., as per the technical estimates of the
Management, where necessary.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any nen-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquire (if any} over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Company’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
acquiree are assigned to those units. Cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
cther assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. An impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated
with the dispesed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill
disposed in these circumsiances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating
unit retained.




Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
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3.14

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses (if any). The intangible assets are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis,
commencing from the date of asset available to Company for its use. The useful life considered for the intangible assets are as under:

(i) Software- Amortized over a period of 5 years

(i) Non-compete - In respect of acquisitions, with effect from 1st April 2023, are amortized over the agreement term unless a shorter useful
life is warranted as per the nature of the acquisition.

The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses.

An Infangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from use of disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset as recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Intangible Assets under Development

Product Development activities involve a plan or design for the production of new or substantially improved products and processes.
Development expenditures are capitalized only if development costs can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the Company intends to and has sufficient resources to complete
development and to use or sell the asset.

The expenditures to be capitalized include the cost of materials and other costs directly atiributable to preparing the asset for its intended
use. Other development expenditures are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as incurred,

Research and Development Expenditure

Expenditure on research aciivities are recognized as expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally generated intangible asset arising from development (or from development phase of an internal project) is recognized if, and
oniy if, all the following have been demonstrated;

a} the technical feasibility of completing the intangible assets so that it will be available for use or sale;

b} the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

¢) the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

d} how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

e) the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset;

f) the ability to reliably measure the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognized for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the

intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated asset can be recognized, development
expenditure is recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recegnition, internally-generated intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment [osses, on the same hasis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the exient of the impairment loss (if any). VWhere it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a
reascnable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. in assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amcunt of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset {or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in the Statement of
Profit and Loss, unless the relevant asset is carifed at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash generating unit} is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but s that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

The Company's policy for impairment of Goodwill is given in Note 3.10 above.
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Inventories

Inventory of Traded Goods comprising Opticals, Pharmaceutical Products, Contact Lenses and Accessories and Consumabtes are valued
at lower of cost ascertained using the First-in-First-out method and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of purchase, freight, taxes, duties
and other charges incurred for bringing the goods to the present location and condition and are net of GST credit, wherever credit has bean
availed.

Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.

Due allowance is estimated and made for unusable/ non-saleable/ expired items of inventory wherever necessary, based on the past
expertence of the Company and such allowances are adjusted against the inventory carrying value,

Revenue Recognition

(i) Revenue from Operations
Revenue is measured at the fair vatue of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of
promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those
products or services. Sales and Service Income exclude Goods and Service Tax (GST) and are net of trade / volume discounts, where
applicable.
Sale of products comprising Sale of Optical Frames and Lens, Pharmaceutical Praducts, Contact Lens and related accessories and
food items is recognised on delivery of items to the customers and when contirol on goods is passed on fo the customers.
Sale of services comprising Income from Consultation, Surgeries, Treatments and Investigations performed are recognised when
performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time, on rendering the related services.
Other Operating Income comprises medical support services provided by the Company and is recognised on rendering the related
services.

(1i) Other Income
Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probabie that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time hasis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition. Dividend Income is accounted for when right to receive it
is established.

{iil) Cross Charges
The Company incur expenses such as salaries, software development and depreciation on common assets etc on behalf of the group
company and share the common resources for the group functions. Such expenses, which are incurrad for the group, are identified,
and cross-charged between the companies.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Initial Recognition:

On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between
the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Subseguent Recognition:
As at the reporting date, non monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported

using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
Treatment of Exchange Differences:

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency are restated at the end of accounting period at the closing exchange rate and
exchange differences on restatement of all monetary items are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Employee Benefits

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits:

{i) Defined Benefit Plans:

Employee defined benefit plans include gratuity.

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitting them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and
losses, the effect of the changes to the asset celling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected
immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognized in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurement recognized in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to
profit or loss. Past service cost is recognized in the Statement of profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is
calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

Defined benefit costs are categorized as follows:

- Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements),
- Net interest expense or income; and

- Remeasurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item 'Employee benefits expense’.
Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Company’s defined
benefif plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of
refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognized at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination
benefit and when the entity recognizes any related restructuring costs.

The Company makes contribution to a scheme administerad by the insurer to discharge gratuity liabilities to the employees.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual teave and sick leave in the period
the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognized in respect of short term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to
be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognized in respect of other long term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash
outflows expected to be made by the Company in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

{ii) Defined Centribution Plans

Emplayee defined contribution plans include provident fund and Employee state insurance.

Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance:

All employees of the Company receive benefits from Provident Fund and Employee’s State Insurance, which are defined contribution
plans. Both, the employee and the Company make monthly coniributions to the plan, each equaling to a specified percentage of
employee's applicable emaoluments. The Company has no further obligations under the plan beyond its monthly contributions. The
Company contributes to the Employee Provident Fund and Employee’s State Insurance scheme maintained by the Central Government
of India and the contribution thereof is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which the services are rendered by the
employees.
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3.22

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs include interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings
to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. Costs in connection with the borrowing of funds to the extent not
directly related te the acquisition of qualifying assets are charged fo the Statement of Profit and Loss over the tenure of the loan. Borrowing
costs, allocated to and utifized for qualifying assets, pertaining to the period from commencement of activities relating to construction /
development of the qualifying asset upto the date of capitalization of such asset are added to the cost of the assets. Capitalization of
borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during extended periods when active devetopment activity on
the qualifying assets is interrupted.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government Grants, Subsidies and Export Incentives

Government grants and subsidies are recognized when there is reasenable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions
attached to them and the grants / subsidies will be received. Government grants whose primary condition is that the Company should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire capital assets are presented by deducting them from the carrying value of the assets. The grant is
recognized as income over the life of a depreciable asset by way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Export benefits, if any, are accounted for in the year of exports based on eligibility and when there is no uncertainty in receiving the same.,

Government grants in the nature of promoters’ contribution like investment subsidy, where no repayment is ordinarily expected in respect
thereof, are accounted in Reserves and Surplus in Other Equity. Government grants in the form of non-monetary assets, given at a
concessional rate, are recorded on the basis of their acquisition cost. In case the non-maonetary asset is given free of cost, the grant is
recorded at a nominal value,

Other government grants and subsidies are recognized as income over the periods necessary to match them with the costs for which they
are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments reflect the Company's management structure and the way the financial information is regularly reviewed by the
Company's Chief operating decision maker (CODM). The CODM considers the business from both business and product perspective based
on the dominant source, nature of risks and returns and the infernal ocrganization and management structure. The operating segments are
the segments for which separate financial information is available and for which operating profit / (loss} amounts are evaluated regularly by
the executive Management in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting palicies of the Company. Segment revenue, segment
expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating
activities of the segment.

Inter-segment revenue, where applicable, is accounted on the basis of transactions which are primarily determined based on market / fair
value factors.

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Company as a whole and are not allocable to segments on reasonable basis
are included under “unallocated revenue / expenses / assets / liabilities”.

Leases

The Company's lease asset classes consists of leases for buildings . The Company, at the inception of a contract, assesses whether the
contract is a lease or not iease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the coniract conveys the right to canirol the use of an identified asset for
a time in exchange for a consideration.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially
measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the end of the lease

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted
using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in
an index or rate, if there is a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if
the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense over the
lease term.
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3.25

3.26

Earnings Per Share

Basic eamings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period,

Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares ¢onsidered for deriving basic
EPS and also weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease earnings per share from
continuing operations. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date.
The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value {i.e. average
market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. The
number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, as

Taxes on Income

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax expense for the year is ascertained on the basis of assessable profits computed in accordance with the provisions of the income-
tax Act, 1961.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid as current tax expense in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the form
of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as tax credit and recognized as deferred tax asset when there is reasonable
certainty that the Company will pay normal income tax in the future years and future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the
Company. The carrying amount is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Financial Statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting pericd and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability s settled or the
asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or setile the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events and it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are
determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date and measured using the present value of
cash fows estimated to settle the present obligations (when the effect of time value of money is material). These are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimaies.

Contingent liability is disclosed for

(i) Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or

(i) Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources wilt be required to seifle the obligation
or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the Financial Statements. Contingent assets are only
disclosed when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity.

Insurance claims
Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be admitted and to the extent that the amount recoverable
can be measured reliably and it is reasonable to expect ultimate collection.
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Financial Instruments

Initial Recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acqguisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)) are
added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. The transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are immediately recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

3.27.1 Financial Assets

{a) Recognition and initial measurement

{iy The Company initially recognizes loans and advances, deposits and subordinated liabilities on the date on which they originate. All
ather financial instruments (including regular way purchases and sales of financial assets) are recognized on the trade date, which is
the date on which the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A financial asset or liability is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FYTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition orissue.

(b} Classification of financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified to be measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated at FVTPL:

« The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

= The contractual terms of the financial asset give Tise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For the impairment policy in financial assets measured at amortized cost, refer Note 3.27.1(g)

A debt instrument is classified as FVTOCI only if it meets both of the foliowing conditions and is not recognized at FWVTPL:

= The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets; and

« The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair vatue.

{c) Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over
the relevant period. The effactive interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Income is recognized on an effeciive interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL.
Interest income is recegnized in profit or loss and is included in the “Other Income” line item.

(d} Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL}

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortized cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria {see above) are measured at FVTPL. in addition, debt
instruments that meet the amortized cost criteria or the FWTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortized cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FYTOCI criteria may be designated as at
FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing the gains and losses on them on different bases. The Company has not
designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are meagured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognized in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the 'Other income' line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognized when
the Company's right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be
measured reliably.
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{e) Impairment of financial assets
The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognizing impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortized cost,
debt instruments at FVTOCI, trade receivables and other contractual rights to receive cash or ather financial asset.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. Credit
loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted
effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets). The Company estimates cash flows by considering
all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected life
of that financial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal fo the lifetime expected credit losses if the
credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has
not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount
equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and
represent the lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash
shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months.

For trade receivables, the Company always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.
Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Company has used a practical
expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes
into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

(f} Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantally all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to contro! the transferred asset, the Company
recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognize the financial
asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been racognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognized in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognized in profit or loss en
disposal of that financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset cther than in its entirety {e.g. when the Company retains an option to repurchase part of a
transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to
recognize under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognizes on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on
the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognized and the sum of
the consideration received for the part no longer recognized and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had besn recognized in
other comprehensive income is recognized in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognized in profit or loss
on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues io be recognized and the part that is no longer recognized on the basis of the relative fair values of

(g} Foreign exchange gains and losses
The fair value of financial assets denominated in & foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot
rate at the end of each reporting period.
» For foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at amertized cost and FVTPL, the exchange differences are recognized
in profit or loss.
» Changes in carrying amount of investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI relating to changes in foreign currency rates are
recognized in othar comprehensive income.
« For the purposes of recognizing foreign exchange gains or losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated as financial assets measured
at amortized cost. Thus, the exchange differences on the amortized cost are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and other
changes in the fair value of FYTOCI financial assets are recegnized in other comprehensive income.
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3.27.2 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

(a) Classification as debt or equity:
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered inte and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

{b) Equity instruments:
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instrurnents is recognized and deducted directly in equity. Mo gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Cempany’s own equity instruments.

(¢} Financial Liabilities at FVTPL:
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for frading or it is designated as at FVTPL.
A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:
« it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or
« on initial recognition it is part of a porifolic of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of shori-term profit-taking;

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

« such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

+ the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value hasis, in accordance with the Company's documented risk management or investment strategy, and
information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;

(d) Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortized cost:

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortized cost at the end of
subseguent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortized cost are
determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalized as part of costs of an asset is included in the
finance costs’ line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense aver
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments ({including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter pericd, to the net carrying amount on initial

{e) Foreign exchange gains and losses:
For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and measured at amortized cost at the end of each reporting period,
the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on amortized cost of the instruments and are recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.
The fair value of the financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the
spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured at FYTPL, the foreign exchange component forms
part of the fair value gains or losses recognized in the Statement of profit and Loss.

(f} Derecognition of financial liabilities:
The Company derecognizes financial liabilittes when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.28 Goods & Service Tax input Credit
Goods & Service Tax Input Credit is accounted for in the books during the period in which the underlying service received is accounted and
where there is no uncertainty in availing/utilizing the same.
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3.29

3.30

Exceptional l{fems

Exceptional items are items of income and expenses which are of such size, nature or incidence that their separate disclosure is relevant to
explain the performance of the Company.

Share Based Payments :

The Company is covered under the employee stock option scheme of Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited, India (the holding company).
Under the plan, the employees and doctors of the Company are granted shares and other stock awards of the holding company, in
accordance with the terms and conditions as specified in the plan. The pian is assessed, managed and administered by the holding
company, whose shares and share based benefits have been granted to the employees and doctors of the Company. The holding company
currently operates the plan / scheme of employee stock option ("ESCP") and a share appreciation rights ("SAR"). The Company has
accounted for the amount of expense under Ind AS 102 considering the invoice received from the holding company taking into account the
valuation carried out in respect of the same and has made the related disclosures required under INDAS 102 based on infermation obtained
from the holding company (Refer Note 45)

ESOPs:

Equity seitled share based payments to the employees of the company are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant
date.

Compensation expense for the Employes Stock Option Plan (“ESOP”) is measured at the option value as on grant date and the cost of the
option will be amortised on a systematic basis which reflects pattern of the vesting of the opticns over the period of 4 years {Refer Note
45.2).

SARs:

Cash settled share based payments to the doctors of the company is remeasured at the value of option at the end of every reporting period.
Compensation expense for the Share Appreciation Rights {“SAR") will be accounted at every reporting date till the date of exercise of the
SARs based on the information provided by the holding company (Refer Note 45.3).

4 Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the accompanying
disciosures. Uncertainty about the assumptions and estimates could resuit in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying value of
assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which
the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

in particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are included in the following notes:

(i) Useful lives of Property, ptant and equipment (Refer Note 3.9)

(ily Assets and obligations relating to employee benefits (Refer Note 3.18)

(i) Valuation and measurement of income taxes and deferred taxes (Refer Note 3.24)
(iv) Provisions for disputed statutory and other matters (Refer Note 3.25)

(v) Allowance for expected credit losses (Refer Note 3.27.1(e))

(vi} Fair value of Financial Assets and Liabilities (Refer Note 3.27.1 and 3.27.2)

(vii) Lease Term of Leases entered by the Company (Refer Note 3.22)

Determination of functional currency:

Currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (“the functional currency”) is Indian Rupee {INR} in which the
company primarily generates and expends cash. Accordingly, the Management has assassed its functional currency to be Indian Rupee (INR).
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Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

6 Right of use assets

{Amount in INR Crores)

Particulars Buildings Land Total

I. Gross carrying value - -
|As at 1st April 2022 55.61 121.12 176,73 |
Additions - 34.82 - = 34.82
Disposals / Adjustments during the period {0.57) - {0.57)
As at 315t March 2023 - 59.86 124.12 210.98
As at 1st April 2023 89.85 12112 210.98 |
Additions - 37.34 = 3734
Disposals { Adjustments during the period ) - (1.67) - {1.67)
As at 31st March 2024 - 125.53 121.12 245,65
Il. Accumulated depreciation and impairment - '

|As at 1st April 2022 21.00 2.02 23.02
Charge for the period - 10.37 | N - - 1037 |
Transferred to CWIP - - 4.24 424
Disposais / Adjustments during the period {0.57) - {0.57)
As at 31st March 2023 30.80 | 6.26 37.06
As at 1st April 2023 30.80 | 6.26 37.06
Aéhiarge for the period 13.25 = 13.25
Transferred to CWIP - 4.05 405 |
Disposals / Adjustments during the period (1.87) e {1.67)
As at 31st March 2024 42.38 10.31 52.69
Net carrying value as at 31st March 2024 83.15 110.81 193.96
Net carrying value as at 31st March 2023 59.08 114.86 173.92

7 Capital work-in-progress

{Amount in INR Crores)

Particulars

As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023

aﬁiial- Work-in~Progress

97.44 62.21

Total

97.44 52.21

7.1 Capital work-in-progress aging schedule

{Amount in INR Crores}

Particulars

Amcunt in CWIP for a period of

As at 31st March 2024 As at 3ist March 2023

Projects in progress

_Less than 1 year 36.52 37.23
1-2year 35.94 24.98
2 - 3 year i N 24.98 -
Total 97.44 §2.21
Note :-

As at 31st March 2024, an amouni of Rs. 26.80 crores (As at 31st March 2023, Rs. 10.24 crores) has been capitalised to the valus of

projecis in pregress as borrowing costs under Ind AS 23.
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Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

9

10

Other financial assets (Non-Current)

(Amount in INR Crores)

Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
(Non-currrent,at amortized cost) - o ]
Securily Deposits ) o - 1.08 1.04
Rental Deposits

Related Party (Refer note 49.4) 038 o 0.36
~ Others - 7.06 o - 5.71
Total 8.50 7.11
Non current tax assets/ Current tax llabilities {net) (Arnount in INR Crores)
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Income tax payments made against returns filed /demands received (including taxes 55,34 41.73
deducted at source)

Less: Provision for Tax - {67.54) (41.32}
Total {2.20) o

10.1 Income tax recognized in statement of profit and loss

{Amount in INR Crores)

Parliculars For the year ended 31st March 2024 For the year ended 31st March 2023
(i) Current Tax: o -
T in -r-e-sE-e-cTn? currentiperiodi R - - 16.22 - 12.33
- in respect of prior years - -
Total {A) - - 16.22 12,33
_(_ii_) Deferred Tax: B -
- in respect of current period (0.33). 0.15
Total (B) {0.33) 0.15
Total income tax expense recogn?iad ih?dfi} and loss account (A-l-Ei . 15.89 12.48
10.2  Income tax recognized In octher cémiprehensive income - -
Deferred tax refated to items recognized in other comprehensive income during _
the year: o
- Remeasursment of defined benefit obligations (0.01) 0.13
- FVTOCI Financial Assets - o .
Total (0.01) 013
Classification of income tax recognized in other comprehensive income B -
- Income taxes related to iterns that will be reclassified to profit or loss = - &
- Income taxes related to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - =
= | gl " g v et e bl i . —
18.3 Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied
by company’s domestic tax rate
Profit / (Loss) before tax after exceptional iterns 62.25 49.40_ i
Income Tax using the tax rate of entities consolidated (Refer Note (i) below) 15.87 ) 12.43__
Tax Effect of :
- Effect of expenses that are nondeductible in determining taxable profit 0.22 0.05
Tax expense recognized in statement of profit or ioss from continuing operations 15.88 12.48

Notes:

The tax rate used for the year ended 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023 reconciliations above are the corporate tax rate of 25.17% opted by the Company ufs 115BAA of

Income tax act.




Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

11 Deferred tax assets {net)

{Amount in INR Creres)

Particulars As at 3tst March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Components of Deferred Tax: -
Deferred Tax Assels 10.03 - 9.7
Net Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities} 10.03 9,71

11.1 Movement in deferred tax assets/{liabilities)

For the year ended 31st March 2024

Amount in INR Crores)

Charge/{Credit) recognized in
Eiclas As at 1st April 2023 Statementfgf Fsroﬂt iz:)lhe:%omprehenslve e ;LZ;“‘““"
and Loss Income
Tax effect of ltems constituting deferred
tax assets [ (deferred tax liahilities) :
Property, Plant and Equipment, Intangible Assets and Capital work in progres 4.18 - _(0.82)' = 3.38
Employee Benefits 2.14 T 0.28 | (0.01) 2.41
Provisiens S 1.05 0.18 - 1.24
Lease assets net of lease liabilties 215 0.58 - 2.83
Financial assets at fair value through profit & loss ) = 0.19 E = 0.19
Net Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities) 9.71 0.33 {0.01) 10.03
For the year ended 31st March 2023
Chargel{Credit) recognized in
i g As at 1st Aprlf 2022 Statementrgf F('roﬁt zjtherg:omprehenslve et :iz‘:)szt3March
and Loss Income
Tax effect of [tems constituting deferred
Property, Plani and Equipment, Infangible Assets and Capital work in progres 5.19 (?‘01“) i - 448
Employee Benefits 153 | 0.48 - 013 214
Provisions a 0.95 | 0.10 - 1.08
Lease assets net of lease liabiities o 1.91 024 - 215
Financial assets at fair value through profit & loss - 0.16 0.03 - 0.19
Net Deferred Tax Assets/ {Liabllities) 9.74 [0.15) 0.13 8.71
12 Other non-current assets {Amaunt in INR Crores)

Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 3tst March 2023

(Unsecured and Considered Good)

Capital Advances o o
-Towards construction of property 242 27
-Others .91 0.88

Total 433 3.59

13 Inventories {at lower of cost or net realizable value) {Amount in INR Crores)
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Traded Goods

Opticals - 3.53 207
Pharmaceuiical Products 217 1.50
Contact Lens and Accessories 1.03 091

Surgical lens including other consumables - 3.02 1.52

Total - - 9.75 5.00

13.1 {Amount in INR Crores)

Particulars For the year ended 31st March 2024 For the year ended 31st March 2023
The cost of inventories recognized as an expense during the year 70.55 60.96
The cost of inventories recognized as an expense, inciudes write downs of 0.25 B ) 0.16

inventory to net realizable value




Dr. Agarwal's Eye Heospital Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

14 Trade receivables

(Amount in INR Crores)

Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Lindisputed Trade Recelvables - Considered Good 17.63 ] 14.16
Allowance for expected credit loss 3 (4.70} {4.05)
Total 12.93 10.11
14.1  Trade receivables ageing schedule-current period {Arnount in INR Crores)

14.2

14.3

14.4

Particulars

As at 31st March 2024

Outstanding for follow}ng periods

from due date of payment

Tota

Less than 6
months

6 months -1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3 years

Undisputed Trade receivables — considered

Undisputed Trade Receivables — which
have significant increase in credi risk

12.73

079 |

0.97

1.94 17.63

Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit [

Disputed Trade Receivables—considered

Oisputed Trade Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk

Disputed Trade Receivables — credit

Trade receivables as at 31st March 2024

1273

0.97 1.20

17.63

Less: Expecied Credit Loss provision

{4.70)

Net Trade receivable as at 3ist March
2024

12.93

Trade receivables ageing schedule-previous period

(Amount in INR Crores)

Particulars

As at 31st March 2023

Cutstanding for following periods

from due date of payment

Total

Less than 6
months

& months -1 year

1-2years 2 - 3 years

More than 3 years

Undisputed Trade receivables — considered

9.19

0.93 |

Undisputed Trade Receivables — which
have significant increase in credit risk

Ungisputed Trade Receivables — credit

Disputed Trade Receivables—ccnsidered

1.62 1.34 |

1.08 1418

Disputed Trade Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk

Disputed Trade Receivables — credit

Trade receivables as at 31st March 2023

9.9 |

0.83

1.08

Less: Expected Credi Loss provision

Net Trade receivable as at 31st March
2023

17.82 l

0.59

0.70 .14

0.05

Credit period and risk

Significant portion of the Company’s business is against receipt of cash settled near to the time of salefservice. Credit is provided mainly to Insurance Companies, Corporate
customers and customers covered by Govemment accorded health benefits. The Insurance Companies are required to maintain minimum reserve levels and pre-approve the
insurance claim, Government undertakings and the Corporate Customers are enterprises with high credit ratings. Accordingly, the Company's exposure to credit risk in relation

to frade receivables is low.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally due immediately when the invoice is raised, Of the Trade Receivable as at 31 March 2024, Rs. 12.78 Crores {(As
at 31 March 2023: Rs.11.74 crores) are due from & (as at 31 March 2023: 7) of the Company's customers i.e. having mare than 5% of the total outstanding trade receivable
bafance. There are no other customers who represent more than 5% of the total balance of trade recgivables.

No trade receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade receivable are due from firms or
private companies respactively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

Expected credit loss allowance

The Gompany has used a practical expadient by camputing the expected loss allowance for trade receivables based on provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account
the historical credit loss experience and adjustments for forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the days the receivables are
due and the rates as given in the provision matrix, considering the amounts due from the government undertakings and the other undertakings.

The provision matrix is as follows:

Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
1-90 days past due 1% to 17% 1% 10 10%
91-180 days past due o ’ 29% 10 32% - 18% to 36%
181-270 days past due 31% to 42% -  31%1t0 40%
271-360 days past due 45% to 56% 36% ta SB%_
361-450 days past due 48% to 100% 40% to 100%
451-540 days past due 46% 10 100%  46% to 100%
541-630 days past due 62% to 100% 80% to 100%
630-720 days past due 72% to 100% 67% to 100%
720-810 days past due 82% to 100% 7% 1o 100%
810 days pést due 100% ~100%




Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited

MNotes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

14.5 MNovement in the allowance for doubtful receivables (including expected credit loss allowance)

(Amount in INR Crores)

Particulars

Balance at beginning of the period
{Add) Provision Created during the period

(Less) Provision Utilised during the year / Bad debts written off
Balance at ¢nd of the period

As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023

4.05 348

) 0.86 0.80
{0,21) (0.23)

4.70 4,05

15 Cash and cash equivalents

(Amount in INR Crores)

Particulars

As at 31st March 2024

As at 31st March 2023

Cash an Hand - 0.52 0.57
Bank balances
In Current Accounts 32.36 o 16,79
In Fixed deposits with maturity less than 3 months 5 10.02
Total o 32,88 27.38
16 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents {Arnount in INR Crores)
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
In Fixed Deposits - under Lien 0.76 0.64
Unpaid dividend o 0.09 0.08
Fixed deposits - Other bank halances 0.01 -
Tatal - 0.85 0.72
Notes:
Deposit under Lien represents deposits placed for Bark Guarantees obtained by the Company from Banks {owards: (Amcunt in INR Crores)
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Customers B 0.76 0.64
Total 0.76 0.64
17 Other financial assets {Current) {Amount in INR Crores)
Partlculars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Interest accrued not due -
On Fixed deposits 0.34 o =
Other Current Financial Assets
Recaivable from Related Parfies '(EeFér_I\]o-te 49.4) - 0.25
Rental Deposits
Others 1.62 1.83
Total o 196 2.08
18 Other current assets {Amount in INR Crores)
Particulars As af 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
{Unsecured and Censidered Good—)_“
Prepaid expenses - 0.37 017
Advances 1o employees 3 0.03
Balances with Govemment Autherities
"~ Input Credit Recelvables 013 0.02
Advances to suppliers 0.95 0.03
Total = 1.45 0.25




Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

19 Equity share capital

As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
PaEass Number of Shares (Amg:::;:) L35 Number of Shares (Amgt:::;:} U35
Authorised Share Capital
Equity Shares of INR. 10 each - 20,000,000 20.00 20,000,000 20.00
- o 20,000,000 20.00 20,000,000 20.00
Issued capital . o
Equity Shares of INR. 10 each 4,700,000 4.70 4,700,000 470
4,700,000 A4.70 4,700,000 4,70
Subscribed and Palﬂp t;pltal - -
Equity Shares of INR. 10 each 4,700,000 4.70 4,700,000 470
Total 4,700,000 470 4,700,000 470
19.1 Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
As at 315t March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Falicders Number of Shares (Amgl:::EI:’INR Number of Shares (Amg::rt;:)lNR
_Equity Shares B
Shares outstanding as at the beginning of the period 4,700,000 470 4,700,000 4.70
‘Add: Fresh issue of sharesf/Adjustment during the period = z ' = -
Add: Bonus issue during the period - - - -
Less: Buy-back of shares during the periad - i ' - -
Shares outstanding as at the end of the period 4,700,000 4.70 4,700,000 4.70
19.2 Details of shares held by Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited (holding company)
Number of Shares Number of Shares
Class of Shares
As at 315t March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Equity Shares of INR. 10/- each 3,372,408 3,372,408
19.3  Terms / rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR. 10. Each holder is entitled to one vote per equity share. Dividends are paid in Indtan
rupees, Dividend proposed by the Board of Directers, if any, is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the annual general meeting except in case of interim
dividend. Repayment of capital will be in accordance with the terms of the Articles of Association and in proportion to the number of equity shares held.
19.4 Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than §% shares
As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Name of Shareholders Number of Shares % holding of equity Number of Shares % holding of equity
held shares held shares
Equity Shares of INR 10 each:
Dr.Agarwal's Health Care Limited 3,372,408 71.75% - 3,372,408 71.75%
Total 3,372,408 T1.75% 3,372,408 71.75%
19.6 Share holding by promoters
As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 % Change In share
Partlculars Numberof % holding of equity Number of Shares % holding of equity holdng
Shares held shares held shares
Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited 3,372,408 71.75% 3,372,408 71.75% -
Dr. Sunita Agarwal 6,663 0.14% 6,663 0.14% -
Pankaj Sondhi ) 100 0.00% 100 0.00% -
Total Promoter Holdings - 3,279,171 71.89% 3,378,171 71.89% )
Note:

There were no shares issued pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash, alletted as fully paid up by way of bonus issues or breught back during
the last five years immediately preceding 31st March 2024




Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

20 Other equity

(Amount in INR Crores)

Particulars Note As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
General Reserve - 20.1 0.83 0.83
Securities Premiunt o - 20.2 5.61 5.51
Retained earnings - 203 146.11 102.30
Total Reserves and Surplus | - 152.45 108.64
20,1 General reserve {Amount in INR Crores)
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at Jist March 2023
Opening Balance 0.83 0.83
Closing balance 0.83 0.83

Note:

The generat reserve represents appropriation of retained eamings by transferring profits. As the general reserve is created by a transfer from one component of
equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve will net be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss.

Securlties premium

(Ameunt in INR Crores)

Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Opening Balance 5,51 551
Closing balance 5.51 5.51

Amounts received on issue of shares in excess of the par value has been classified as securities premium.

Retalned earnings

(Amount in INR Crores)

Particulars As at 315t March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Ohenag Balance - 102.30 67.14
Adjustments -

Praft attributable to owners of the Company 46.36 B 36.92
Dividends distributed to Equity Shareholders B (2.59) (1.41)
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability or asset

{Net of taxes) (Refer note 42.3) a.04 (0.35}
Closing balance ) 148.11 102.30
Notes:

{i}In accordance with Notification G.S.R 404(E ), dated & Apri} 2016, remeasurement of defined benefit plans is recognised as part of retained eamings.
(iIn respect of the year ended 315t March 2024, the directors propese that 2 final dividend of Rs.2.50 per share te be paid on fully paid equily shares. This equity
dividend is subject fo approval by shareholders at the annual general meeting and has not been Included as a liabilty in these financial statements. The proposed

equity dividend is payable to all holders of fully paid equity shares.




Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

21 Borrowings {Non-Current) {Amount in INR Crares)

Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023

Borrowings measured at amortized cost:

(Secured Borrowings)

Term Loans-

Banks (Refer Note (21.1) below) ' B 44 46 3577
Total N 4446 35.77
2141 Details of term loan from banks - secured

The Company has availed Term Loan from Banks as at 31st March 2024. The details of lenor, interest rate, repayment terms of the same are given below:
{Arnount in INR Crores)

S.No,

No., of instaiiments oufstanding as at
Interast Rate Repayment Terms

31st March 2624 | 31st March 2023

Ltoan Amount As af  Loap Ameount As at
3tst March 2024 31st March 2023

Original Tenor (in
Months}

Term L_<_?ans from Axis Ban!t_(Refer Nr.lte _(i} nelow)

19 Repo + Spread | 0 7 | Principa¥ Interest Monthly e ] 2.27
2 120 Repo + Spread | 9% 96 [ Principa¥/ Interest Monthly 50.81 35.82
7 ; Sub-Total 50.81 38.09 |
GECL Loan from Axis Bank (Refer Note (i) below) -
BN e Repo +Spread 5 17 Principall Interest Monthly | 0.49 167
I [ T Sub-Total - ] 0.49 1.67
Vehicle Loans from Axis Bank ' i
1 &0 ' 9% ! 0 1T 14 Principalf Interest Monthly 5 0.13
| Sub-Total ‘ ' 5 0413
[ Total of borrawings ' [ ' 51,30 38.89
from Banks
Less : Current Maturities of long-term borrewings (Refer Note 25) S o {6.84) (412}
Long-term Borrowings | | S | ) 4445 35.77

Netes 21.1(a)

(a) Security

(i) Axis bank Term Loan and Qverdraft facility

The details of Security provided are as follows:

Primary Security

1.Hypothecation of the entire current assets of the company.

2. First and exclusive charge on the Plant and Machinery owned by the company other than those funded by other banks/NBF Cs.
3.Term loan — Hypothecation of movable fixed asseis proposediexisting purchased out of term loans.

Collateral Security

Collateral Security common for all facilities

1. Paripassu charge (with HDFC Limited for a loan taken by Dr. Agarwal Eve Institute) on the landed properly of 8.88 grounds telonging to Dr Agarwal Eye Insfitute and
proposed building to be constructed there on at Mo. 1%, Cathedral Road, Gopalapuram, Chennai, 800088,

Personalf Corperate Guarantor

1. Personal Guarantees of Dr. Amar Agarwal, Dr. Athiya Agarwal, Dr. Adil Agarwal, Dr. Anosh Agarwal, Dr. Ashar Agarwal, Dr. Ashvin Agarwal, Dr. Agarwal's Health Care
Limited and Dr. Agarwal Eye [nstitute.

{ii) The Govemment of india under "Emargency Credit Line Guaranteed Schems (ECLGS) has directed the banks to provide Guaranteed emergency Credil Line (GECL) by way
of working capilal term loan {(WCTL) . This facility is covered by 100% guarantee from NCGTC (National Credit Guarantee Trustee Company Lid - Ministry of Finance). The
amount sanctioned is INR 3.52 Crore with a moratorium period of 12 months , further Secuiity provided against GECL loan are as follows:

1. Second charge on all primary & collateral securities mentioned above.
2.100% Guarantee from NCGTC

(b) As at 31 March 2024, the Company has not complied with 2 financial covenant relating to current ratio specified in the sanction letter. Subsequent to the year end, the
Company has obtained a written acknowledgement from the bank that the non-compliance will not impact the term and the repayment terms as per the crigina! schedule will
hold good. There have been no non compliance with the repayment of principal and interest as well as other terms and conditiens of the borrowing availed by the Company
during the year.
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22

23

24

Lease liabilities {(Non-Current)

{Amount in INR Crores)

Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Lease Liabilities 203.59 177.97
Total 203.59 177.97

QOther financial liabitities {Non-Current)

[Amount in INR Crores)

Particulars

As at 31stMarch 2024

As at 31st March 2023

Acquisition Liabilities
Otherﬂancial Liabilities

- 0.438

Retention maney payable - 1.35 0.74
_O_ther fiﬂancial Liabilities measured al Fair Value 1.01 0.36
2.36 1.58

Total

Provistons (Non-Current}

{Amount in INR Crores)

Particulars

Provision for Employee Benefits:

As at 3ist March 2024

As at 31st March 2023

Gratuity Payable (Refer note 42.3) 5.76 4.64
o Ccmpengéd Absences (Refer note 42.2) 1.67 1.56
Total - 7.43 6.20

26 Borrowings [Current) {Amount in INR. Crores)
Particulars As at 3ist March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Loans repayable on demand o

Current Maturities of Long-Term Bormowings o - o
Secured Borrowings-Bank (Refer note (ji)) a 6.84 412
Overdraft facility (Refer note (i) - 3.4
Total ) ) 6.84 8.06
Notes :
(i} The details of interest rate, repayment and other terms of the Short Term Borrowings are as follows:
Type Name of the party [Interest Rate Repayment Terms [As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Overdraft facility Axis Bank Rapo+Spread On Demand = 3.94
(i) Security Refer Note 21.1(a)

26 Lease liabilities (Curront) (Amount in INR Crores)
Particulars As at 3ist March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Lease Liabilities ) 13.13 10,67
Total o 1313 10.67

27 Trade payabies (Amount in INR Crores)
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises (Refer Note 39) 4.62 2.28
Dues of Creditors Other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprisesﬂ(il-'\;egfer 27.22 2441
note 49.4)

Total B 31.84 26.69
271  Trade payahles ageing schedule-current period (Amount in INR Crores)
As at 31st March 2024
Particulars Outstanding for folfowing periods from due date of payment Total
Not due Less than 1 year 1 -2 year 2-3 year More than 3 year
MSME 4.59 0.03 - E E 482
~ Others 23.42 2.09 113 0.30 0.28 27.22
Disputed dues - MSME = BE 2 = = -
Disputed dues - Others | - = - - | - | -
Total | 28.01 212 1.43 | 0.30 | 0.28 | 31.54
27.2  Trade payables ageing schedule-previous period {Amaunt in INR Crores)
As at 3ist March 2023
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Not due Less than 1 year 12 year 2-3year More than 3 year
MSME - 228 | - - - 2.28
Others 1886 | 474 | 0.30 020 0.31 24,41
Disputed dues - MSME | - 5 - - - e
Disputed dues - Others - - - - - =
Total 18.86 | 7.02 0.30 | 0.20 | 0.31 ] 26.6%
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2

k=1

30

(Amount In INR Crores)

COther financial liabilities {Current)

Particutars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Payables towards purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment 11.52 4.00
Interest Accrued but not due 0.04 0.02
Acquisition Uabilittes(Refer Note below) 0.48 04z
Payable to Related Party (Refer Note 49.4) 8.15 .
Unpaid dividend 0.09 0.08
Total 20.28 4.52
Note:

Acquisition Liabilities represents the estimated fair value of the contingent consideration relating to the acquisition of eye hospital which was acquired upto 31st March

2024

Other current lHabilities

(Amount in INR Crores)

Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Contract liabilities 1.84 1.08
Statutory remittances 219 1.89
Gratuity Payable {Refer note 42.3) 1.16 o 103
Total - 519 410
Provisions (Current} {Amount in INR Crores)
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 3tstMarch 2023
Provision for Employee Benefits:
Compensated Absences (Refer note 42.2) 1.02 0.77
Provision for Contingencies (Refer note 30.1 Eelow) 0.27 0.27
o 1.29 1.04

Tatal

30.4 (i) The Company carries a 'provision for contingencies' towards various claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts (Refer Note 41}, based on

Management's best estimate.

(i) Whilst the provision as at 31st March 2024 is considered as current in nature, the actual outflow with regard to said matters depends on the exhaustion of
remedies available under the law based on varicus developments. No recoveries are expected against the provision.
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31 Revenue from operations

(Amount in INR Crores)

For the year ended 31st

For the year ended 31st

l_= a_a_rt:cu_lirs CoOE = s i PRI March 2024 March 2023

Sale of Products (Refer Note (31.1) below) 74.87 64.80
Sale of Services (Refer Note (31.1) below} 24187 201.93
Other Operating Revenues 276 137
Total o 319.30 268.10

31.1 Disaggregation of the revenue information
The tables below present disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers for the year ended 31st March 2024 by offerings. The
Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainity of our revenues and cash flows
are affected by industry, market and other economic factars.
(Amount in INR Crores}
For the year ended 31st  For the year ended 31st

Sale of Products comprises the following:

Raaet March 2024 March 2023
Traded S ) . -
Opticals 48.16 ) _ 42 16
Pharmaceutical Products 7 _ 2512 21.07
~ Conlact Lens and Accessories - - 1.58 1.57
74.57 654.80
Totai - Sale of Products B 74.87 64.80

{Amount in INR Crores)
For the year ended 31st  For the year ended 31st

Sale of Services comprises the following :

Pariiculars

z March 2024 March 2023
Income from Surgeries o - 200.82 166.38
Income from Consuftation - 12.43 11.85
Income from Treatments and [nvestigations 28.42 23.70
Total - Sale of Services 241.67 201.93

Note:

The services are rendered to various patients and there are no patients who represent mare than 10% of the total revenue. However, the Hospital
also serves patients who are covered under insurance/heaith schemes run by insurance companies, corporates and the central/siate government
agencies, wherein the services rendered fo the patient is on credit to be reimbursed by the said insurance company, corporate or government
agency.

31.2 Trade receivables and contract balances
The group classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as receivable.

The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as receivable.

A receivable is a right to consideration that is unconditional upon passage of time. Revenue is recognized as and when the related goods /
services are delivered / performed to the customer.

Trade receivable are presented net of impairment in the Balance Sheet.
Contract liabilities include payments received in advance of performance under the contract, and are realized with the associated revenue
recegnized under the contract.

31.3 Performance obligations and remaining performance obligations
The remaining perfarmance abligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet io be recognised as at the end
of the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognise these amounts in revenue. Appiying the practical
expedient as given in IND AS - 115, the Company has not disclosed infermation about remaining performance obligations in contracts
where the original contract duration is one year or less or where the entity has the right to consideration that corresponds directly with the
value of entity's performance completed to date.

31.4 Geographical revenue hreakdown

(Amount in INR Crores)

. For the year ended 31st  For the year ended 31st
P k
articulars March 2024 March 2023
Within India ) 319.30 268.10
Total 319.30 268.10
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32 Other income

33

34

35

36

(Amount in INR Crores)

Particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
NMarch 2024 March 2023
Interest Income on financial assets carried at amortised cost
Interast Incoms - Bank deposits : 1.26 0.20
Interest Income - Security deposits 069 0.58
Profit on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment = 0.03
Liabilities no longer required - Written Back 1.72 0.24
Miscellansous income 1.30 0.50
Total 4.97 1.55
Purchases of stock-in-trade (Amount in INR Crores}
3 For the year ended 31st  For the year ended 31st
i ey Y arch 2024 Y arch 2055
Opticals 18.25 15.41
Pharmaceutical Products 16.22 : 13.36
Contact Lens and Accessories = 1.03 1.51
Purchase for food item 0.45 0.40
Total 35.95 30.68

Changes in inventories of finished goods,stock-in-frade and work-in-progress

{Amount in INR Crores)

< For the year ended 31st  For the year ended 31st
Pafours Y% Warch 2024 7" march 2023
Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Opticals e 2.07 2.08
Pharmaceutical Products 1.50 1.14
Contact Lens and Accessories enon 0.39
4.48 3.61
Inventories at the end of the year: e
Opticals 3.53 2.07
Pharmaceutical Products GEiee 217 1.50
Contact Lens and Accessories 1.03 0.91
6.73 4.48
Total {2.25) (0.87)
Employee benefits expense {Amount in INR Crores)
: For the year ended 31st  For the year ended 31st
Particulars % March 2024 5 March 2023
Salaries and Bonus 55.46 47 .46
Contributions o Provident and Other Funds {Refer note 42.1 & 42.3) d 4.05 3.48
Staff welfare expenses - e 1.80 1.36
Employee Stock option expense (Refer note 45.4) 247 0.96
Total 63.78 53.26
Note :- Salaries and Bonus to an extent of Rs. 2.47 crores and Employee Stock Option expense of Rs. 2.47 crores cross charged from Dr.
Agarwal's Health Care Limited.
Finance costs {Amount in INR Crores})
Particulars For the year ended 31st  For the year ended 31ist
ke £ S 2 March 2024 March 2023
Interest expense
interest on Term loan - Bank 0.18 0.95
Interest on Deferred Consideration 0.08 0.14
interest Others 0.05 013
Interest on lease liability (Refer note 44.3) 679 5.58
Other Borrowing Costs 0.07 0.07
Total 747 6.87

Note :- Other Borrowing Costs represents the corporate guarantee charges which is payable to Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited.
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38

Depreciaticn and amortisation expenses (Amount in INR Crores)
Particuiars For the year ended 31st  For the year ended 31st
Sk G e March 2024 March 2023
Depreciation on Tangible Assets (Refer note 5) 13.01 9.29
Amortization on Infangible Assets (Refer note 8) 0.35 o 052
Depreciation on Right-of-use assets (Refer note 8) ' 1325 10.37
Total - ' 26.61 20.18
Qther expenses (Amount in INR Crores}
Particulars For the yearended 31st  For the year ended 31st
s March2024  MWarch 2023
Power and Fuel 5.60 3.29
Water Consumption - ) 014 0.11
Rent o N o 3.22 322
Repairs & Maintenance ' _ )
Repairs & Maintenance - equipments ) 1.31 _ 193
Repairs & Maintenance -Others - 2.78 o 292
Hospital maintenance charges and Security charges N ' 6.11 o 502
Insurance . 0.21 010
Rates and Taxes B ' 0.12 ) {0.05)
Communication . 7 1.05 B 0.92
Travelling and Conveyance o o 3.84 ' 3.58
Printing and Stationery - . 1.36 124
Legal and Professional Charges 220 219
Software Maintenance Charges 1.13 162
Business Promotian and Entertainment ) 3.19 2.82
Marketing Expenses R 9.55 7.41
I;ayment o Auditors (Refer note 38.1 below) ) 0.48 0.48
‘Bank charges ' ' 113 147
Net Loss on Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation - ' 0.11
Loss on Sals of property, plant and equipment ' 0.23 ) =
Allowance for e;peaed_crédit losses o 0.86 ' R 0.80
Bad Receivables Written off o ) 0.21 R 0.23
Less: Utilisation of allowances other Allowanse for expected credit losses ' {0.21) (0.23)
Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibilty (Refer note 38.2 betow) 0.65 043
Miscellaneous Expenses - ) 0.38 112
Total ) 45.54 40.43

Note - Repairs and maintenance to an extent of Rs. 0.42 crores cross charged from Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited and Software
maintenance charges of Rs. 0.87 crores cross charged o Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited.

381 Payment to auditors (Amount in INR Crores}
Particulars For the year ended 31st  For the year ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
As Auditors:
For Statutory Audit {(including Limited Review Fees} 0.40 0.40
Reimbursement of Expenses - 0.01 0.01
Goods and Service Tax ) 0.07 0.07

Total ’ 0.48 0.48
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41

38.2 Corporate social responsibility {CSR) {Amount in INR Crores)
ded 31st Mar
Pariiculars For the year ended 31st March 2024 For the year 2322 st March
Amaount requiféd tobe spent by the company during the year 0.65 0.43
Amount appro\._'ed by the Board to be spont during the year 0.65 ) 0.43
(a) Healthiare ﬂices 0.11 0.24
(b} Promotion of education ¢.47 019
(c) Others - 0.07 N
Disclosures required under section 22 of the micro, small and medium enterprises development act, 2006 {Amount in INR Crores)
Particulars* For the year ended 31st March 2024 ' O theyear ‘;’6:;" att Mareh
Prii‘léibal-ér-noum remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the 4,62 2.28
accounting year
Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of 002 T 010
the accounting year
The amount of interest due and payable for the year 0.02 D.10
The amaunt of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the 0.02 0.10
accounting year
The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding - - c.01

year, undil such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid

*Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by the
Management.

Capital commitments
{(Amount in INR Crores)

Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As af 31st March 2023
The estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on a 27.84 36.44
Capital Account, net of advances and not providad far
Towards construction of property 21.11 36.17
Others 8.73 0.27

Contingent liabilities
{Amount in INR Crores}

Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 3tst March 2023
Consumer Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt 1.98 2.08
Notes:

(i) Based on Professional Advice / Management's assessment of ail ihe above claims, the company expects a favorable decision in respect of the above
claims and hence no specific provision has been cansidered for the above claims.

(i) The amounts shown above represent the best possible estimates arrived at on the basis of the available infermation. The uncertainiies and possible
reimbursement are dependant on the outcome of the various legal proceedings which have been initiated by the Company or the Claimants, as the case
may be and, therefore, cannot be predicted accurately.
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42 Employee benefits
421 Defined contribution plans

{c) Expenses recognized : (Amount in INR Crores})
Particulars For the year ended 31st March 2024 For the year ;::;d st March
Included under 'Contributions to Provident and Other
EUmdS{REERNGISa)____ — A N S

Contributions to provident and pension funds 2.46 - i 208
Contribuiions o Employee State Insurance 0.25 0.28
Total 271 2.36
42,2 Compensated absences {Amount in INR Crores)
Particulars Forthe year ended 31st March 2024 0" 1 Year nded 31stMarch
Included under 'Salaries and Bonus' (Refer Note 35} 0,15 0.74
Particutars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Net asset / (liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet (2.69) {2.33)
Current portion of the above (Refer Note 30) {1.02) - (077)
Non - current portion of the above (Refer Note 24) (1.67) (1.56)
The Key Assumptions used in the computation of provision for compensated absences are as given below: (Amount in INR Crores)
Particulars Forthe year ended 31st March 2024 " (" ¥ear ehded d1stiarch
Discount rate (% p.a) 7.20% - 7.30%
Future Salary Increase (% p.a) 9.00% 10.00%
Withdrawal rate 22% at all ages 22% at ali ages

42.3 Defined benefit plans
The Company cperates a graiuity plan covering gualifying employees. The benefit payable is calculated as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972
and the benefit vests upon completion of five years of continous service and once vested it is pavable to employees on retirement or on
termination of employment. In case of death or disabifity while in service, the gratuity is payable irrespective of vesting. The Company makes
annual contribution to the group gratuity scheme administered by the Life Insurance Corporation of india.
fn respect of the plan, the most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present vatue of the defined benefit obligation were carried out
as at 31st March 2024 by M/s Kapadia Global Actuaries for the Company. The present value of the defired benefit obligation, and the related
current service cost and paid service cost, ware measured using the projected unit cost credit method.

{a} Amount recognized in the statement of profit & loss {including other comprehensive income} in respect (Amaount in INR Crores)
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Amounts recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss in
respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows:

Service Cost [Refer Note(i) below] :

Current Service Cost (Refer note (i) below) 1.03 088
Met inferest expense (after netling off interest income on plan 0.31 0.24
assets INR 0.19 crorgs)

Components of defined benefit cosis recognized in the 1.34 112

Statement of Profit and Loss
Remeasurement on the net defined henefit liahility:

Return on plan assets (excluding amount included in net 0.62 0.04

interest income) S

Actuarial gains and loss arising from changes in Financial (0.23) 013

assumptions

Actuarial gains and lass arising from experience adjustments 0.16 0.31
Components of defined benefit costs recognized in other (0.05}) 0.48

comprehensive income
Total defined bensfit cost recognized in Statement of Profit
and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

1.28 1.60

(i) The current service cost and interest expense for the year are included in Note 35 - 'Employee Benefit Expenses’ in the Statement of Profit &
Loss under the line item 'Contribution to Provident and Other Funds'
{ii) The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in cther comprehansive income.

{b) The amount included in the baiance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of defined {Amount in INR Crores)
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Net Asset/(Liability} recognized in ithe Balance Sheet
1. Present value of defined benefit obligation 8.93 77
2. Fair value of plan assets (2.01} (2.32)
Net asset / {lability) recognized in the Balance Sheet | 6.92 ' o 5.85

~ Curent portion of the above 1.16 1.03

Non - current portion of the above 5.76 4.64
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{c) Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows : (Amount in INR Crores)
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Present value of defined benefit obiigation' at the beﬁnning 7.97 6.65
of the year B
Expenses Recognized In Statement of Profit and Loss:

Current Service Cost 1.03 0.88
Interest Expense/(Income) 0.50 0.35

Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income:
Remeasurement gains / (losses)
Actuarial {Gain)/ Loss arising from:

Financial Assumptions - (0.23) ' 0.13
Experience Adjustments 0.16 - 0.30
Benefit payments (0.50) - (0.34)
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the
year 8.23 7.97
{d)} Movement in fair value of plan assets are as follows : {Amount in INR Crores)
Particutars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 2.30 2.28

(e}

Adjustment to Opening Balance
Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss:
Interest income 0.18 G.11
Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income:
~ Remeasurement gains / (losses)

Return on plan assets (excluding amount included in net (0.02) (0.04)
interast income}

Contributions by employer ' ' 0.04 ' 0.30
Benefit payments - (0.50 (0.35)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 201 2.30
The fair value of plan assets plan at the end of the reporting pericd are as follows: (Amount in INR Crores)
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 3ist March 2023
Investment Funds with Insurance Company

Life Insurance Corporation of India - 2.01 - 230

The plan assets comprise insurer managed funds. None of the assets carry a gucted market price in aclive market or represent the entity's own
transfarable financial instrumeants or property occupied by the entity.

{f) The Actual return on plan asset for the period ended 31st March 2024 was Rs.0.17 Crores ( For the year ended - 31st March 2023: Rs.0.07 Crores).

(g} Actuarial assumptions

Investment Risk:

The present value of defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to the prevailing market
yields of Indian goverment securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.

Interest Risk:
A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability. However, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan's
Investments.

Longevity Risk:

The present valug of the defined benefit plan liabiiity is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during
and after their employment. An increase in the iife expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liabifity.

Salary Risk:

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries. In particular, there is a risk for The Company
that any adverse salary growth can resuit in an increase in cost of providing these benefits to employees in future,
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The principal assumptions used for the purpose of actuarial valuation were as follows :

Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Discount rate o 7.20% 7.30%
Expected rate of salary increase - [ 9.00% 10.00%
Expeéfe_ti_réturn on plan assets 7.30% T 7.30%
Expected Aitrition rate based on Past Service (PS) (% p.a) 22.00%  2200%
Wr?ityﬁ - Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
{2012-2014) (2012-2014)

1. The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Governmeant securities as at balance sheet date for the estimated term of

2. The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant facters.

3. In order fo protect the capital and optimize retums within acceptable risk parameters, the plan assets are maintained with an insurer managed
fund (maintained by the Life Insurance Cerporation {"LIC")) and is well diversed.

Sensitivity Analysis:

The benefit cbligation results of a such a scheme are particularly sensitive to discount rate, safary growth and employee attrition, if the plan
provision do provide for such increases on commencemeant of pension.
The following table summarizes the impact in financial terms on the reported defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporiing period arising on
account changes in these four key parameters:

{(Amount in INR Crares)

Increase / {Decrease} an the Defined benefit Obligation As at 31st March 2024 As at 3ist March 2023

Discount Rate

Increase by 50 bps B.78 o 7.83

Decrease by 50 bps 9.09 - 8.1
Salary growth rate a

increase by 50 bps 9.06 8.08

Decrease by 50 bps 8.81 7.85

Aftrition rate
Increase by 50 bps B.87 7.90
Decrease by 5C bps 9.00 8.05

These sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit chligation in isolation and assuming there are no other changes
in market conditions at the accounting date. The sensitivily analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined
benefit obligations as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in iscfation of one another as some of the assumptions may be
corretated.

Furthermore in presenting the above sensifivity analysis the present value of defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit
credit method at the end of the reporting pericd which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognized in
tha balance sheet.

(h) Asset-Liability Matching Strategies
The Company has purchased insurance policy, which is basically a year-on-year cash accumulation plan in which the interest rate is declared on
vearly basis and is guaranieed for a period of one year. The insurance Company, as part of the policy rules, makes payment of all gratuity liability
occurring during the year (subject to sufficiency of funds under the palicy}. The policy, thus, mitigates the liquidily risk. However, being a cash
accumulation plan, the duration of assets is shorter compared to the duration of liabilities. Thus, The Company is exposed to movement in interest
rate.

{i) Effect of Plan on Entity's Future Cash Flows
a} Funding Arrangements and Funding Policy
-The Company has purchased an insurance palicy to provide for payment of gratuity to the employess. Every year, the insurance Company carrias
out a funding vaiuation based on the latest employee data provided by the Company. Any deficit in the assets arising as a result of such valuation
is funded by the Company.
h) The Company expects to make a confribution of Rs. 1.16 crores during the next financial year.
¢) The weighted average duration of the benefit obligation at 31st March 2024 is 3.84 years (as at 31st March 2023 js 3.86 years).
d) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:
(Amount in INR Crores)

Expected cash flows over the next (valued on undiscounted As at 31st March 2024 As at 3tst March 2023
basis): 3

Within 1 year 2,62 227
2to 5 years ' 4.87 4.29
6 to 10 years - 3.06 274

Total - 10.45 9.30
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43  Segment reporting
The company is engaged in providing eye care and related services provided from its hospitals which are located in india. Based on the "management
appreach” as defined in Ind-AS 108 - Operating Segments, the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the company's performance and
allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by the overall business segment, i.e. Eye care related sales and services.

As the allccation of resources and profitability of the business is evaluated by the CODM on an overali basis, with evaluation into individual categories to
undersiand the reasons for variations, no separate segmenis have been [dentified. Accerdingly no additional disclosure has been made for the segmental
revenue, segmental results and the segmental assets & liabilitles. All of the Company's on current assets and fixed assets are in India.

(Amount in INR Crores)

Particulars As at 31st March 2624 As at 31st March 2023
_Segmerit Revenus -
Within India 319.30 - 28810
Total Revenue 319.30 268.10
Segment Assets -
Within India 417.4C 326.58
Totai Assets 417,40 326.58
44 Leases
441 The following is the breakup of current and non-current lease liabilities {Amount in INR Crores)
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Current lease liabilities (Refer Note 26) 13.13 ) 10,67
Nen-current lease liatilities {Refer Mote 22) 203.55 177.97
Total 216.72 188.64
44.2 The contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis is as follows: {Amourt in INR Crores)
Expected Minimum Lease Commitment
Lease Qbligati —
s o G g As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Payable - Nat fater than one year 27.24 21.80
Payable - Later than one year but not later than five years 92.69 73.05
Payable - Later than five years 361.33 355.00
Total 481.26 449.95
44.3 Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss {Amount in INR Crores)
Particulars For the year ended 31st March 2024  For the year ended 31st March
2023
Interest on lease liabilities (Refer Note 36) 6,79 5.58
Expenses relating fo short term leases (Refer Note 38) 3.22 3.22
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (Refer Nate 37) 13.25 10.37
Total 23.26 19.17
Note: Interest on lease liabilities transferred to Capital-work-in-progress amounts to INR 8.78 crores for the year ended 31 March 2024 and
Depreciation on Right-of-use assets transferred to Capital-work-in-progress amounts to INR 4.05 crores for the yaar ended 31 March 2024,
44.4 Amounts recognised in the cash flow statement {Amount in INR Crores)
Particulars For the year ended 31st March 2024  For the year ended 31st March
2023
Total cash outflow for leases (18.8%) (8.44}

* Excludes INR 5.93 crores included in Capital work in progress
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45 Share-based payments

The Company is covered under the employee stock option scheme of Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited, India (the holding company}. Under the
plan, the employees and dectors of the Company are granted shares and other stock awards of the holding company, in accordance with the terms
and conditions as specified in the plan. The plan is assessed, managed and administered by the holding company, whose shares and share based
benefits have been granted to the employees and docters of the Company. The holding company currently operates an employee stock option
("ESOP"} and a share appreciation rights ("SAR"). The Company has accounted for the amecunt of expense under Ind AS 102 considering the
invoice received from the holding company and has made the related disciosures required under INDAS 102 based on information obtained from

45.1  Awards from the Holding Company
the holding company.
45.2 ESOP

The stock awards granted generally vest over a four service pericd. The annual stock awards are granted effactive of the 28th November 2022,
this effective date is the "award date” used for stock plan administration purposes and shown in the awards agresment. [The maximum number of
shares in a stock award is, not exceeding 2% of the Paid Up Cagpital of the Holding Company, as on August 12, 2022, comprising 1,568,522 Options

to or for the benefit of the employees of the Group.]

The following reconciles the share options at the beginning and at the end of the year:

(Amount in INR Crores)

Number of options as *Weighted average Number of

*Weighted

Particulars on 31st March 2024  price of option options ason  average price
as on 31st March  31st March 2023 of opticn
Options outstanding as at the beginning of the period 34,880,00 1,593.06 -
Add: Qptions granted during the period 11,680.00 2,128.59 34,880.00 1,503.06
Less: Options lapsed/forfeited during the period (1,108.00) 1,593.06 E -
Less: Ouptiong exercised during the period (1,568.00) 1,593.08 - -
Less: Options Transferred during the pericd - - - -
Options outstanding as at the year end B 43,584.00 1,735.590 34,880.00 1,603.06

*Weighted average price of options of Series - 1 is Rs. 1,593.06 (outstanding number of options 32,204 )
*Weighted average price of cptions of Series - 2 is Rs. 2,128.59 (outstanding number of options 11,680 )

The fair value has been calculated using the Biack - Scholes Option Pricing Model and the significant assumptions and inputs o estimate the fair

value of options granted during the year are as follows:

Particutars

Series - 1

Beries - 2

Opticn grant date

Option price at the grant date

28th November 2022

| Cption life
Exercise price
Risk-free interest rate

18th March 2024

Expecied volatility

- 1,593.06 | 212859

o 4 Years 3 Years
i 2.548.00 3,896.48

N 7.45% 6.95%

46.23% | 39.83%
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453 SAR
The Share Appreciation Rights (SAR) gives consultant doctors of the Company the opportunity to receive a cash bonus equal to the appreciation
in the value of the units which shall, for each unit, be the difference between fair market value of the equity shares as at payment event
trigger{PET) of Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited (the helding company) and exercise prica as stated under the Plan.
However, the payment timing shali not exceed 4 {four) years from the date of grant. If PET occurred only after 4 (four) years from the date of grant,
then the 100% of the payment will be made at the end of the fourth year.

{Amount in INR Crores)

Number of options as Weighted average Number of Weighted
on 31st March 2024  price of option options as on average price
Particulars as on 31st March  31st March 2023 of option
2024 as on 31st
March 2023
SARs outstanding as at the baginning of the period 15,876.00 2,827.26 - )
Add: SARs granted during the period REIE] 2,544.00 =] 15,876.00 282726
Less: SARs lapsed/forfeited during the period . (8,080.00) - - -
Less: SARs exercised guring the period = - - - -
Less: SARs Transferred duringrtﬁeiperiod ; S - - -
Options outstanding as at the period end 12,340.00 2,827.26 15,876.00 2.827.26

The fair value of each award was astimated on the date of year end using the following assumptions:

Particulars Series 1 Series 2{a} Series 2(b)
Option grant date ~ zBthNovember2022  18th March 2024 18th March
2024
Option price at the reporting date 2,827.26 2,128.59 2,351.63
Option life 4 Years 3 Years 4 Years
Exercise price 2,548.00 3,896.48 3,896.48

*Weighted average price of options of Series - 1 is Rs. 3,054.76 (outstanding number of aptions 9,796 )
*Weighted average price of cptions of Series - 2(a} is Rs. 2,128.59 (cutstanding number of options 1,544 )
*Weighted average price of options of Series - 2(b} is Rs. 2,351.63 {cuistanding number of options 1,000 )

454 Total expense accounted for by the company on account of the above are given below:
{(Amount in INR Crores)

Pariiculars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2024  31st March 2023
ESOP cost accounted by the company (Refer note 35) 247 0.96
SAR cost accounted by the company (included in Consuitancy ~ 0.65 0.37
charges to Doctors)
Total 312 1.33
46 Earnings per share {Amount in INR Crares}
Particulars For the year ended 31st March 2024 Forthe year ehded 21et Mza;g
Earnings Per Share - Basic — Rs. 98.64 78.55
Earnings Per Share - Diluted — Rs. D 98.64 78.55
Profit / (Loss) after Tax - Amount in Rs, Crs i VTR 46,36 35.92
Net Profit atiributable to Equity Shareholders - Rs. in Crs (Basicand 46.36 36.92
Diluted)
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares (Face Vaiue of Rs. 10 4,700,000 4,700,000
Each) - Basic (Nos.} - - | ;.
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares (Face Value of Rs. 10 4,700,000 4,700,000

Each) - Diluted (Nos.)
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47  Financial instrurnents

47.1

47.2

Capital management

The Company manages capital rigk in order to maximize sharehalders’ profit by maintzining sound/optimal capital structure. For the purpose of the Company’s
capital management, capital includes Equity Share Capital and Gther Equity including share of non-controlling Enterest and Debt includes Borrowings and Other
Financial Liahilities excluding Payables towards PPE net of Cash and bank balances. The Company monifors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio.
There 15 no change in the overall capital risk management strategy of The Company compared fo last year.

Gearing Ratio : {Amount in INR Crores)
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 3tst March 2023
‘Borrowings and Other Financial Liabilities 279,14 234 57
Cash and Bank Balance o o (33.74) (28.10)
Net Debt {A) 245,40 206.47
Total Equity (B) 157,15 N 11334
Net Debt to equity ratio (A/B) 1.56 1.82

Categories of financial instruments

The carrying value of the financial instruments by categories as on 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023 is as follows: (Amount in INR Crores)

Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023

Financial Ajsets o
Measured at amortized cost

Cash and Cash Equivalents ' 3288 27.38
Other Bank balances - 086 0.72
Trade receivables 12.93 - 1011
Other financial assels 10.46 o ECRT
S B 57.13 47.40

Financial Liabilities : -
Measured at fair value through P&L

Other financial liabilities 1.01 -
Measured at amortized cost -
Borrowings - 51.30 - 43.83
Trade Payables 31.84 - 26.60
Payables towards PPE . 11.52 N 4.00
Other financial liabilities 10,11 - 210
"~ Lease Liabilies o 216.72 - 188.64
. 322.50 265.26

The management assessed that fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, loans, berrowings, trade payables and other current financia
assels and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely dua to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liguidation sale.

The fellowing methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value/amortized cost

(i) Long-term fixed-rate receivabies/borrowings are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates, specific country risk factors,
individual losses and creditworthiness of the receivables

(i) The fair vaiue of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities, as well as other non-current financial liabilities are estimated by
discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. In addition to being sensitive fo a
reasonably possible change in the forecast cash flows or discount rate, the fair value of the unquoted instruments is also sensitive to a reasonably possible
change in the growth rates. The valuation requires management to use unobservable inputs in the model, of which the significant enobservable inputs are
disclosed in the tables below. Management regularly assesses a range cf reasonably possible alternatives for those significant unobservable inputs and
determines their impact on the total fair vaiue.

Fair Value Hierarchy

Level 1. Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (uncbservable inputs).

Details of financial assets and financial liabilities which were valued at fair value as of 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023 are disclosed in Note 47.1
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47.3 Finangcial risk management framework

The Company's board cf directors have overall responsikility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Company
manages financial risk relating to the operations through internal risk reports which analyze exposure by degree and magnitude of risk.

The Company's aclivities expose it to a variety of financial risks: liguidity risk, credit risk and market risk (including interest rate risk and other price risk). The
Company’s primary risk management focus is to minimize potential adverse effects of market risk on its financiai performance. The Company's risk
management assessment and policies and processes are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and
controls, and to moniter risks and compliance with the same. Risk assessment and management policies and processes are reviewed regularly 1o reflect
changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Board of Direciors and the Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Company's risk
assessment and managemant policies and processes.

{a) Liquidity Risk Management :

Liquidity risk refers to the risk thet the Company cannot meet its financial chligations as they become due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by
ensuring as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet is liabifities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Company's reputation. The Company maintains adeguate reserves and banking facilities, and continuously
monitors the foracast and actuzl cash flows by matching maturing profiles of financial assets and financial liabilities in accordance with the approved risk
management policy of the Company periodically

Liquidity and Interest Risk Tables :
The following tables detail the Company's remaining centractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The
tables include both interast and principal cash flows.

To the extent that interest fiows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves at the end of the reporting perlod. The
contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Company may be reguired to pay.
(Amount in INR Crores)

Particulars i Less than 1 year \ 1to 5 years 5 years and above Total
As at 31st March 2024 |
Interest bearing 34,58 118.10 380.38 533.06 |
Non-interest bearing ) o . 51,64 | 236 - 54.00
Total | 86.22 | 120.45 330,38 587.06

|
As at 31st March 2023 \ -
Interest bearing 30.46 96.85 ' 367.47 40478
Non-interest bearing ' 3079 110 | N 31.89
Total 61.25 97.85 367.47 526.67

The following tables detall the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial assets with agreed repayment periods. The
Company dees not hold any derivative financial instrument.
(Amount in INR Crores)

Particulars Less than 1 year 1to § years § years and ahove Total

As at 31st March 2024

Interest bearing N N 4,60 3.90 8,50
Non-interest bearing 48.63 | S - 48563
Total 48.63 | 4.60 3.90 57.13
As at 31st March 2023 o B ‘t |

[Interest bearing o 12.77 | - T 19.88
Non-interest bearing 27.55 | == -] 27.55
|Total B 40,32 | = 741 47.43

(b) Credit Risk:

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Campany if a customer or counterparly to a financial insirument fails fo meet its contractual cbligations. Gredit
risk encompasses of both, the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks. Financial instruments
that are subject to concentrations of credit risk principally consist of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, bank depoesits and other financial
assets. None of the other financial instruments of the Company result in material concentration of cregit risk. Credit risk is controlled by analyzing credit
limits and creditworthiness of custerners on a continuous basts to whom the credii has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for credit.

The carrying amount of the financial assets recorded in these financial statements, grossed up for any allowance for losses, represents the maximum
exposures to credit risk.

Trade receivables: The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of
the customer, including the default risk of the industry and credit history, also has an influence on credit risk assessment.

Refer Note 31 and Note 14 for the details in respect of revenue and receivable from top customers.
Credit risk on current investments and cash & cash equivalent is limited as the Company generally fransacts with banks and financial institutions with
high credif ratings assigned by international and domestic credit rating agencies,

{b.1) Financing arrangemenis
The Campany has access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period :
{Amount in INR Crores)
As at 31st March As at 3tst March
2024 2023
banks - Working capital limit 4.00 0.06

Particulars
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()

{c.1)

Market Risk :

Market risk is the risk of loss of any future earnings, in realizable fair values or in future cash flows that may resuit from adverse changes in market rates
and prices {such as interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates) or in the price of market risk sensitive instruments as a result of such adverse
changes in market rates and prices. Market risk is attributable to all market risk-sensitive financial instruments, all foreign currency receivables and
payables and all short-ferm and long-term debt.

Interest rate risk:
Intarest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument wil fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company’s exposure 1o the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily 1o the Company’s debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company's management monitors the interest fluctuations, if any, and accordingly, take necessary steps to mitigate any interest rate risk.

Interest Rate sensitivity analysis:

A change (decrease/increase} of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would increasef(decrease) equity and profit or loss by the amounts
shown below. This analysis assumes ihat all other variatles, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.

Impact on Profit and loss for the reporting period {(Amourt in INR Crores)
As at 31st March 2024 As at 3tst March 2023
Particulars :
increase by 100bps | Decrease by 100bps | Increase by 100bps | Decrease by 100bps
Impact on Profit and loss for the reporting period {0.51) 0.59 (0.44) 0.44
Impact on total equity as at the end of the reporting period {Amount in INR Croras)
As at 31st March 2024 As at 3tst March 2023
Particulars
Increase by 100bps | Decrease by 400bps | Increase by 100bps | Decrease by 100bps
Impact on total equity as at the end of the reporting period {0.51) 0.51 (0.44) 0.44
Note :

This is mainly attributabie to the éxposure of receivable and payable cutstanding in the above mentioned currencies to The Company at the end of the

47.4 Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required)

The Management considers that the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recognized in the financial statements approximate their fair
values.

47.5 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Company has not offsat financial assets and financial liabilities.
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48 Ratios

Particulars For the year ended 31st  For the year ended 31st Variance
March 2024 March 2023
i Current Ratio & - 0.74 0.84 -12%
i Debt-Equity Ratio 2 S 71 2.05 7%
i Debt Service Coverage Ratio ik Aiiao a7 233 2%
iv  Return on Equity Ratio 34% 39% 11%
v Inventory Turnover Ratio 896 10.39 -14%
vi  Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio GRS e 28.52 3%
{i.e. Debtors Turnover Ratio)
vi  Trade Payables Tumover Ratio 2.54 2.34 9%
viii  Net Capital Turnover Ratio' 3 (15.25) (31.39) -51%
ix NetProfit Rato L Riampreaere st DT 0.14 5%
x  Return on Capital Employed (Adjusted) e i 30.16% 32.48% -7%
xi  Return on Capital Employed e 16.36% 16.33% 0%
xii  Return on Investment NA NA
Note:
1 Net Capital Turnover Ratio is decreased mainly due to increase in payable towards purchase of Property, plant and equipment.

Formulae for computation of ratios are as follows -

vi

Vi

Vil

viii

Current Ratio

Debt/ Equity Ratio

Debt Service Coverage Ratio

Return on Equity Ratio

Inventory Turnover Ratio

Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio

Trade Payables Turnover Ratio

Net Capital Turnover Ratio

Net Profit Margin (%)

Return on Capital Employed

Current Assets

Current Liabilities (Inciuding Current maturities of Non-
Current Borrowings)

Total debt (includes total lease liabilities)

Equity Share Capital + Other Equity

Earnings available for Debt Service

Debt Service

Profit for the year attributable to Owners of the Company

Equity Share Capital + Average Other Equity

Cost of Materials Consumed

Average Inventories of Goods

Revenue from Operations

Average Trade Receivables

Purchases

Average Trade Payables

Revenua from Operations

Working Capital

Profit/ (L.oss) after Tax

Revenue from operations

Earnings before Interest and Tax

Equity Share Capital + Other Equity + Borrowings -
Goodwill - Other Intangible Assets
(Includes total lease liabilities)

Earnings before Interest and Tax

Equity Share Capital + Other Equity + Total debt -
Goodwill - Other Intangible Assets
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48 Related pa

rty disclosure

49.1 Names of retated parties and nature of relationships*

S.No
0
(ii)

| (if) |
(iv)

(v)

(vi) |

Nature of Relationship

i Ho]ding company

Fellow Subsidiary

Associate Company of Holding Company
Entity having significant influence over the
holding company

Enterprise over which the Key Management
Personnel (of the Company and the Holding
Company) is in a position to exercise
controlfjoint control

Key Management Personnel (KMP} of
Company I Holding Company

2023-24

2022-23

Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited (AHCL)_ =5

Aditya Jyat Eye Hospital Private Limited{AJE)

Elisar Life Sciences Privale L;rnlted(Ehsar)

Crbit Healthcare Services (Mauntlus) Limited

Orbit Health care services (Tanzania) Limited

" Orbit Healthcare Services Limited, Rwanda" :

Orbit Healthcare Services Ghana Limited

Orbit Healthcare Services Mozambique Limited |
" Orbit Healthcare Services SARL, Madagascar

Orbit Healthcare Services Uganda Limiied

:Aditya Jyot Eye Hospital Private Limited{AJE) ]

Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited (AHCL)

Elisar Life Sciences Private Limited(Elisar)
Orbit Healthcare Services (Mauritius) Limited |
Orblt Health care services (Tanzania) lelted
Orblt Healthcare Services Limited, Rwanda
Orblt Healthcare Services Ghana Limited

Orbit Healthcare Serwces Meozambigue Limited
Orbit Healthcare Services SARL, Madagascar
Orbit Healthcare Services Uganda Limited |

Orbit Healthcare Services Zambia Limited
Orbit Healthcare Services Kenya Limited

Orhit Healthcare Services Zambia Limited
Orbit Healthcare Services Kenya Limited

IdeaRx Services Private Limited

Claymore Investments (Mauritius) Pte. Lid

|IdeaRx Serwces Private Limited

Claymere Investments (Mauritius) Pte. Ltd

Hyperion Investments Pte. Lid

 Arvon Investments Pte.Ltd

Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute

Dr. Amar Agarwal

__(w.e.f 05 May 2022)

Hyperion Investments Pte. Ltd
(w.e.f 05 May 2022)

Arvan Invesiments Pte Ltd

Dr. Agarwal’s Eye Institute

Dr. Amar Agarwal

Dr. Athiya Agarwal

Mr. Balakrishnan Venkataraman

Dr. A{hiya Agarwal

Mr. Balakrishnan Venkataraman

Mr. Sanjay Dharambir Anand

Mr. Sanjay Dharambir Anand

_Dr. Aghvin Agarwal
Dr. Ashar Agarwal
Dr. Adil Agarwal

"Dr. Anosh Agarwal

Mr. Shiv Agrawal

Dr. Ashvin Agarwal
Dr Ashar Agarwal
Dr. A Adil Agarwal
Dr. Anosh Agarwal
Mr. Shiv Agrawal

' Mrs. Meenakshi Jayaraman (AEHL)

Ms. Lakshmj Subramanian (AEHL)

Mrs. Meenakshi Jayaraman (AEHL)
Ms. Lakshmi Subramanian {AEHL)

Mr. B. Udhay Shankar {Group CFO)

Mr. B. Udhay Shankar (Group CFO)

*Related parly relationships are as identified by the Management and relied upen by the auditors.
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4%.2 Transactions carried out with related parties referred to above in the ordinary course of business during the year

{Amaount in INR Crores)

Particulars

Related Party

2023-24

2022-23

Transactions during the year

Expenses

Corperate Guarantee charges Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited 0.07 0.07
Maintenance Elisar Life Sciences Private Limited 0.07 = |
Other Expenses Elisar Life Sciences Private Limited = | 0.05
Purchases IdeaRx Services Private Limited 9.91 7.88 |
Employee expenses {(ESOP) Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited 2.47 | 0.96
Rent Expenses Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute 7.00 6.64
B Dr. Ashvin Agarwal - Guesthouse 0.39 0.36
Salary Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited 1.43 = |
Consultancy charges Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited 2.02 =
Repairs & Maintenance 1or. Agarwal's Health Care Limited i 042 0.34
Sale of Asset lor. Agarwal's Eye Institute | 0.04
Sales |Aditya Jyot Eye Hospital Private Limited | PR 0.01
Recovery of Expenses
Interest Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited - 0.01 0.02
Salary Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited ¥ 7 1.12
Software maintenance expenses lor. Agarwal's Health Care Limited 0.87 0.70 |
Others
Callection received by the Company on behalf of | Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited 3.26 -
related party (Net of settlement) - S L
Dividend Paid Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited 1.85 1.01
|Dr. Sunita Agarwal | P 0.00 0.00
Mr. Pankaj Sondhi | S - 0.00 0.00
Purchase of Asset |Elisar Life Sciences Private Limited E 020 0.03
Asset Sale |Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited i -
ler. Agarwal's Eye Institute EF s -
Notes:

{i) The Group accounts for costs incurred by / on behalf of the Related Parties based on the actual invoices / debit notes raised and accruals as
confirmed by such related parties. The Related Parties have confirmed to the Management that as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, there are no
further amounts pavable to / receivable from them, cther than as disclosed above. The Group incurs certain costs on behalf of related parties. These

costs have been allocated/recavered from the related parties on a basis mutuzlly agreed with them.

(i} An extension of paripasu charge on a property owned by Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute has alsc been provided to HDFC Limited and Axis Bank as a
security in respect of the Term lean and Overdraft facility availed by the Dr Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited.

{iii} Also refer note 45.4 for SAR expenses.

(iv) Dr. Amar Agarwal, Dr. Athiya Agarwal, Dr. Adil Agarwal, Dr. Anosh Agarwal, Dr. Ashar Agarwal, Dr. Ashwin Agarwal and Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute
have provided personal guaranteas for term loans taken by the Group.




Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

49.3 Compensaticn of key management personnel {Amount in INR Crores}

Particulars Related Party 2023-24 2022-23
Short-term employee benefits (Refer Note {i}) Or. Amar Agarwal 2.36 2.36
(Remuneration) o “|Dr. Athiya Agarwal 0.92 0.92
“|Mr. Udhay Davey 0.76 124
R Ms. Meenakshi Jayaraman ) 0.16 0.11
Mr. B. Udhay Shankar i 0.00 0.00
Dr. Amar Agarwal 0.00 0.00°
Dr. Athiya Agarwal 0.00 0.00
Ms. Meanakshi :jayaréman 0.00 0.00 |
- Mr. Balakrishnan 0.01 0.01
i o Mr. Sanjay Anand 0.01] 0.01
- Ms. Lakshmi Subramanian ) 0.01 0.01
Consultancy Dr. Ashvin Agarwal B 1.01 0.88
Reimbursement of Expenses Dr. Amar A@Emal - 0.55 0.93 ]
Dr. Ashvin Agarwal 0.54 052

Notes:

(i} Excludes gratuity and compensated absences which cannot be separately identifiable from the compesite amount advised by the actuary.

(in

The remuneration payable to key management personnel of Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited and Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited is determing
(iil) There were no balances outstanding to be paid / received as at the year end.
{iv) The above remuneration for key managerial personnel does not include vehicle, communication expenses & other expenses.
(v) Since the figures are reported in crores, please note that - denotes NIL baiance and '0’ denotes nominal figures.
{(¥) All the figures disclosed above are exciuding Goods and Service Tax

49.4 Balances outstanding as at year end

{Amount in INR Crores)

; As at 31st March As at 31st March
Particulars Related Party 2024 2023
Assets
Other Financial Assets Aditya Jyot Eye Hospital Private Limited 2 0.01
Dr. AganNai's Eye Instiiute 4.58 4.58
Other Current Financial Assets Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited - 0.25
Liabilities R
Trade Payabie idea Rx Services Private Limited 222 093]
Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited - 0.07
Dr. Kmarjgaﬁma] - 0.22
B Mr. Udhay Davey = 0.10
B o - Ms. Meenakshi Jayaraman - 0.01
Dr. Agarwals Eye Institute - 0.55 0.49 |
Other financial liabilities Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited 8.15 0.37 |

Notes:

{i) The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. There have been no instances of amounts due to or due from related parties
that have been written back or written off or otherwise provided for during the year.




Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

50 Undisclosed Income

The Gompany does not have any transaction which are not recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

51 Transactions with companies whose name is struck-off

The company has not entared into any transactions with entities whose name has been struck off under Section 248 of the Act or section 560 of
Companies Act, 2013 except for a company named "F2 connect Private Limited" for which ouistanding payable is Nil as at 31 March 2024.

52 Audit Trail & Backup of accounting records
(i) The Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its bocks of account for the year ended 31 March 2024, which have & feature of
recording audit irail {edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares except in
respect of maintenance of payroll records wherein the Company has used payroll sofiware which is operated by a third party service provider for which
independent auditor's system and organization contrels report covering the audit trail requirement at the database lsvel is not available with the

Company.

The audit trail feature is not tampered in raspect of accounting softwares for which the audit trail feature was enabled and operating. The Company is
in the process of evaluating optiens to comply with the audit irail requirement.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from 1 April 2023, reporting under Rule 11 {g) of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit irail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the year ended 31

March 2024,
{fi) The Company has maintained backup on daily basis of its accounting records which is in electronic mode. The backup is maintained in servers

physically located outside India.

53 Other disclosures
{i} The company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date.
(i} The Company neither has any owned immovable property nor any title deeds of cwned Immovable Property not held in the name of the Company.
{iii} During the financial year, the Company has not revalued any of its Properly, Plant and Equipment, Right of Use Asset and Intangible Assets.
{iv) The Company has not granted any Loans or Advances to promolers, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013.)
either severally or jointly with any other persen, that are:
{a) repayable on demand or
{b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment

{v) The Company does not have any intangible assets under development as at 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023, and hence disclosure under
Schedule 11l is not applicable.

{vi) There are no proceedings which have been initiated or pending against the company as at 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023 for hoiding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.

{vii) The Company has not heen sanctioned working capital limits in excess of INR 5 crores, in aggregate, at any point of time during the year from banks
or financial institutions on the basis of security of assets. Hence, the Company is not required to file quarterly returns or statement of current assets
with banks or financial institutions.

{viil) The Company has not bean declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Instituticn or other lender

{ix) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period, as at the ysar ended 31st March
2024 and 31st march 2023.

{x) As al 31 March 2024, the Company has no subsidiaries and hence clause (87) of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
{Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 not applicable.

{xi) The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds {either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any
ather person(s} or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the

Intermediary shall :-
(i) directly or indirectly land or invest in other persons or enlities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ulimate

Beneficiaries) or
(i} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
{xii) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s} or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether

recorded in writing or otherwise} that the company shall:-
(i) diractly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatscever by or en behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate

Beneficiaries) or
(iiy provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficiaries

{xiif} The CGompany neither has traded nor invested in Crypto cumency or Virtual Currency during the Financial year.

(xiv) The Company does not have any investment properties as at 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023 as defined in Ind AS 40.




Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited
CIN - L85110TN1994PLC027366
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

54 Approval of Financial Statements

The Beard of Directors of the Company has reviewed the realizable value of all the current assets and has confirmed that the value of
such assets in the ordinary course of business will not be less that the value at which these are recognized in the financial
statements, In addition, the Board has also confirmed the earrying value of the non-current assets in the financial statements. The
Board, duly taking into account all the relevant disclosures made, has approved these financial statements in its meeting held on 25th
April 2024,

55 Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspend with the current year's classification
fdisclosure

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

M

Dr. Amar Agarwal Dr. Athiya Agarwal

Chairman & Managing Directer Whaletime Directar

00435684 01365659

Place : Chennai Place : Chennai

Date : 25th April 2024 Date : 25th April 2024
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r.B. Udhay Shankar Ms. Meenakshi Jayaraman
hief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Chennai Place : Chennai

Date : 25th April 2024 Date : 25th April 2024




